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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
S 5 % #8  2E

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T_A=Z1+—HILFE

2021 2020 Change

S e =t = T 21

Revenue (HK$’ million) st (F #iT) 105.7 363.9 -71%

Gross profit (HK$’ million) SV INQ=N: 27 5T 55.4 133.2 -58%

Operating profit/(loss) (HK$’ million) 4845 2 |,/ (F518) (H ##s0) 84.6 (237.1) N/A
Profit/(Loss) attributable to shareholders & 5 RE 1L 2 F] (&5 18)

(HK$’ million) (H#EHIT) 52.7 (242.0) N/A
Gross margin (%) EFIE (%) 52.4 36.6  +15.8pptH 7 &
Operating margin (%) £ TR % (%) 80.0 —65.2 +145.2pptH 7B
Net margin (%) T E R (%) 49.9 —66.5 +116.4pptF /) 2
Basic earnings/(loss) per share B RIEARRF], (FEE)

(HK cents) (sl 2.9 (14.4) N/A

As at 31 December
wt+—H=+—H
2021 2020 Change
S e M =t 21
Cash and cash equivalents WMl &%EY

(HK$’ million) (A & #s0) 227.5 124.6 +83%
Convertible notes (HK$’ million) AR R R (H D) 29.4 24.6 +20%
Equity attributable to shareholders 3 S A E 25

(HK$’ million) (A & #s0) 590.1 528.2 +12%
Current ratio (times) (Note 1) BB R () (M sE—) 2.7 1.5 +80%
Net gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) A R %) (st —) Net cash Net cash -

FHE R
Notes: B 5E -
1. The calculation of current ratio (times) is based on total current assets divided by~ — - & Ji B HL & (fF) JHAR I8 A 4F oK 22 I Bh & s 48 %8 1% DL it
total current liabilities as at year end. By A AR A
2. The calculation of net gearing ratio (%) is based on net debt (being total of . - VF A R(%)JIRIFINE KR 2 G EFHE (RIS A E &
lease liabilities and convertible notes less cash and cash equivalents) divided by ARG S 2 A I A B B S ) ok L SR A
equity attributable to shareholders as at year end. i wl 5 o

m Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

To 4 BA 55 L 22
For the years ended 31 December
BET-H=1+—HIL4EE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
R CF R DR -NE F-NFE DF B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T T T TUs It T U0 T
Results E 4

Revenue i i 105,717 363,921 2,126,362 4,127,087 5,210,995
Gross profit EBH 55,412 133,232 781,138 2,061,029 2,753,036
Operating profit/(loss) wERA (FR) 84,591 (237,141)  (1,019,535) (786,577) (688,823)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to % A
shareholders A (EEHE) 52,723 (241,987)  (1,070,127) (994,397) (734,204)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share B B AR
(HK cents) (& 8) (AL 2.9 (14.4) (64.9) (60.3) (44.5)

As at 31 December

B+ —-H=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RO CEF R CFENE ZF-NFE R B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TT T T T T T

Assets and liabilities B KB
Non-current assets B EE 574,651 567,137 608,015 787,664 1,358,995
Current assets MENEE 262,070 291,541 623,349 2,181,706 2,794,865
Total assets W E 836,721 858,678 1,231,364 2,969,370 4,153,860
Non-current liabilities IE i B & 1 38,427 29,111 23,157 3,850 13,409
Current liabilities WE B E 96,563 192,040 411,854 1,054,064 1,104,790
Total liabilities RN =E 134,990 221,151 435,011 1,057,914 1,118,199
Total equity 4 25 701,731 637,527 796,353 1,911,456 3,035,661
Attributable to: LLF & T HERG -
Shareholders i 590,052 528,230 692,711 1,779,825 2,874,907
Non-controlling interests IE P2 i M HE 2 111,679 109,297 103,642 131,631 160,754

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@@%’zm



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FERBEWEFN

The Group’s

interests

Existing use Lease term A
Property address* W 3 Hb B H 1w H & A JRE A1 RE 25
No. 1 Juhe Third Street, Tongzhou, B b 5T T A N [ Office and Medium 100%
Beijing, China T =R warehouse GRR:]

WS % R T

Linbing Community, Hanjiang, Putian, rP R A R TR L Factory Medium 85%
Fujian, China LS OER) T Gk
Room 301, 3/F, Block 15A, Software o R R VT T R O [ Office Medium 100%
Park Phase 2, No. 68 Keyuan Main B B K 78 68 55 A4 Bl I — 3 /N W HA
Road, Xixiangtang, Nanning, Guangxi, 1598 BEABE3 B 30155 5
China
Shops 1-118 to 121, 1-135 to 138, o B T e B T P L D Shop Medium 100%
Block 00, Today Xinduhui, No. 56 il i 1 56 9E Today #r 4B e )i B GiR:]
Jiefang Road, Xigong, Luoyang, O0ME1-118% 121 ~
Henan, China 1-135% 138 5% i &iff
Shops 1-95, 2-177 to 178, 2-193 to o B T R M T Shop Medium 100%
196, 3-190 to 198, No. 36 Taikang IR (1] iR [ SRR B 536 5% I 4 w1y
Road, Guancheng Huizu District East, 1-95 > 2-177%178 ~ 2-193 %
Zhengzhou, Henan, China 196 ~ 3-190% 198 5% i fff
Floor 1 to 9, Block 96, No. 1 Cuizhu o TR T A T Office Medium 100%
Street, High Technology Industry o B 90 S B R W= i
Development Zone, Zhengzhou, AT 195969514 1-9E
Henan, China
Shops C56 & C57, 1-2/F, Block rh L R T Shop Medium 100%
S2, Zone A, Wuhan Jingkai Wanda I T Al B 8 [ 1202 Ji5 i i HA
Plaza, 12C2 Wuhan Economic and T S B R IS A R
Technology Development Zone, S218 1-2fBCS56 ~ CST5E i o
Wuhan, Hubei, China
Rooms 601-606 & 614-620, W B R U T AR [ Office Medium 100%
Hexiexiaoxiang Building, No. 158 TR HE 1SS 55N A R K I W= w1
Wuyi Main Road, Furong, Changsha, 601-606, 614-620F
Hunan, China
No. 31 Hushitai Main Street South, i [ 78 5 T Office and Medium 100%
Hushitai Economic and Technology TE A B S AT B 5 I warehouse i
Development Zone, Shenyang, IR A= R DN TR K /NS Gy
Liaoning, China
Shops 79-80, Block 1, Wanda Plaza, Fp g U 0] [ I R )1 T Shop Medium 100%
Jinfeng, Yinchuan, Ningxia 4 B I B R 18 N5 Bl SRl

Hui Autonomous Region, China

FE79-80%5 7 Sifi

m Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
ERBEWEFN

The Group’s
interests
Existing use Lease term AR
Property address* W 3 Hh B H #i H & BB oK ] JRE A1 HE 25
No. 2916 Shiji Main Road, Zhangqiu, o B 1L B I T L Office and Medium 100%
Jinan, Shandong, China 40 K 36291658 warehouse 1
WS T A i
No. 3908 Hugingping Road, Zhaoxiang TR T Office and Medium 100%
Town, Qingpu, Shanghai, China it BB H 1A 153908 58 warehouse SRR
b UNE S
22/F, Block B, Ludihui Centre, No. 258 Hh A A M I HE RS 25 8 9% Office Medium 100%
Longgi Road, Shanghai, China Sk b, [ Hp oL BB 2248 /e T
Room 11101, Block 6, No.47 o [ [ 7Y A P L T AR J Office Long 100%
Lejuchang Road South, Beilin, Xian, 445 1 ATHROIE 111015 W= =M
Shaanxi, China
Unit 3703-3711, 37/F, Block 2-1, No. o I 1] R TIT B VL Office Medium 100%
68 Dongda Street, Zhiquan Section, SRR A 11 SR Br o8 k2 W= i
Jinjiang, Chengdou, Sichuan, China 1% J6374#3703-3711%
No. 7 Chuangye Road, Xingwen Street Fh DY )1 B T R Factory Medium 100%
Office, Bazhou, Bazhong, Sichuan, LS 7 I R S T R T Gk
China
Room 601, No. 55 Jinbin Main Road, S PREARE N Office Medium 100%
Hedong, Tianjin, China HE K HE5555601 % W= 1A

* English address is for identification purpose only

T A S
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
E ek

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Daphne
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), I am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

In 2021, despite mass vaccination efforts across the globe, sporadic
coronavirus outbreaks continued to exert pressure on the global
economy. Nonetheless, China’s economy shown resilience and
sustained a steady recovery. The market picked up rapidly in the first
half and the total retail sales of consumer goods posted double-digit
growth year on year. As the world begins to navigate the economic
recovery, it is clear that the pandemic has had a profound impact on
all walks of life. The pandemic has altered consumer behaviour and
continued to fuel growth to the “stay-at-home” economy. During the
year under review, the Group completed a major transformation and
started afresh with a new asset-light business model. Following the
transformation, the Group’s operations successfully turned profitable in
the second half of the year, laying a solid foundation for its long-term
development.

With the new business model, the Group shifted its role from a retailer
to an asset-light brand owner. Its retailing network has been transformed
into the franchising and licensing network. The new business model
allows authorised online and offline franchisees and licensees to operate
with the “Daphne” brand and take the initiative in order placing, while
the Group provides them with reliable supply chain resources. In
addition, the disposal of inventories related to the directly-managed and
partnership stores during the year immensely alleviated pressure from
operating and administrative costs and inventory risk exposure, thus
allowing the Group to enhance resource allocation and shift its focus on
brand licensing management and supply chain management, and further
strengthen its role as a brand owner.

In light of the fierce market competition, the Group is exploring
cooperative opportunities with a domestic no-code or low-code
corporate digital intelligence collaborative data platform to enhance the
management of supply chain and franchising and licensing network,
aiming to achieve quality refinement, cost reduction and efficiency
enhancement in its operations and production. The Group believes
that the new system, which is expected to be launched in early 2022,
will help streamline workflow between authorised manufacturers and
franchisees and licensees. In addition, the data collected by the platform
will guide the Group to develop in-depth understanding of consumer
preferences as well as identify market trends, thereby better catering the
taste of the segmentised market.

m Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ek

To further consolidate its role as a brand owner of “Daphne”, the Group
kept abreast of the latest trends and stepped up its efforts in product
research and development. With the “leisurisation” of outfits trending
globally, the Group designed and launched more stylish casual shoes
and lower-heeled shoes to cater for the mass market. In an effort to meet
the diversified preferences and demands of young consumers, the Group
continued to infuse more youthful and trendy designs in its products to
appeal to a younger demographic to maintain its brand vitality. During
the year under review, the Group debuted the “Sugar Cube Collection”
for fall and winter with the theme of “Removing Stereotype Impression”
to highlight that women should not be restrained in the social stereotype.
Featured with a mix of sweet and cool elements, the collection shows
that women do not only have to dress in a certain way. Since its launch,
the collection has received overwhelming positive response from young
consumers. Aiming to tap into the potential of young consumers and
create products that better represent its target consumers, the Group
will launch more youthful collections with trendy designs and explore
collaborative opportunities with other brands to broaden its customer
base.

Capitalising on the accelerated digital transformation and the rising
“stay-at-home” economy, the Group actively expanded its online
licensing network and stepped up its efforts in social media marketing
during the year. As the number of digitally connected consumers grows
and social media usage expands, the opportunity of social media is
greater than ever. During the year, the Group collaborated with various
social platforms to establish a deeper engagement with its consumers,
thereby stimulating online discussions of the brand and increasing
brand awareness on social media platforms. Going forward, the Group
will explore innovative marketing strategies on various social media
platforms to build stronger customer relationships and further expand its
market share. The Group will also prudently adjust its franchising and
licensing network according to the market condition.

Looking forward to 2022, the macro environment remains uncertain
due to sporadic outbreaks around the world, which may delay the
full recovery of China’s economy and hammer consumer sentiment.
Despite the on-going pandemic and uncertain outlook, taking China’s
steady economic recovery in 2021 into consideration, the national
economy is expected to fully recover gradually. Following the business
transformation in 2021, the Group, which now operates with a new
asset-light business model, made a solid turnaround in the second
half of 2021. It proves that the Group is on the right track to achieve
higher growth in the future. The Group will continue to optimise its
business model and further strengthen its role as a brand owner. In view
of the ever-changing consumer demand, the Group will leverage its
competitive advantages, forge ahead with its customer-centric approach,
and seize opportunities, thereby consolidating Daphne’s leading
position in the industry. Backed by the new business model and the joint
effort of the entire staff, I believe that the efficacy of the transformation
will continue to be manifested in the future to promote sustainable
development of the Group.

T — 20 B [ S W8 | ot R v 2 AR 4R ) X o
RS SR S TR T o BB A BRI A [ IR
AL RS > BEat 4 th 1 5 2 g i PR ) 3 A R R
B DUIS R o J I R AR B B 2 AR
B AN R > AS B RS B AR E A R A S 2 AR TR
W Y Rt o PR AR A RS T DA S| AR R 2R o (8]
AR A > AR SR A L DA T B 220 A D B ) 2 R Bk A
[IrBE R B ] - 90 4 e AS JE 2 ik & 20 i B 5% BT o
Mo ARG TRIRMES TR > R LA IR
U AEVURRERSE BT N o AHER DU - 7
RONHE] T AF B B BRI o 7 12 9 4F BN
FHRES > A EREAUR L BB B H A M
A G2 51 AR £ B 22 B R G RO AR R R ) 5 3 B R B
Hofth b 0 & G o DUBRORHLZ S B -

AR R 7 AR T ) T A R R [ ] AR i L
A > RN R AR IR AEA A > 0 R A S IR 8 )
JEE o BB W B A G R R AL SR R R RO
22 GRS A T B S RE R o AR A > A B2 1] B 2 R AL
B AE o BB RS R B R
Uk ol A AR AR o PR T A R A AL SRR B Y
WA BE o R RAC A SR B AR A REAL SRR - B
PERADH &S o DU S A [ 1% F BRI
HE— 25 RO LTI 55 0 A o AR 4R B S TR T LA R
] R AR T A o

JEE T AR BN AE A R - R BER
ST AS BT - SO A % v KR I A TR 3T 8RN
BHEE O - RS ERA TSR > HEE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
F R A

Finally, I would like to express my gratitude to all customers, business % » ERH I AT B & - 2£5 & 1E 1 08 1 I 5 A IR B
partners and shareholders for their support to the Group during the W33 A% 4 [ (1) 2 H5 328 o [R] K5 2R Jgk G 45 #8L F J Por
challenging times. I would also like to thank management and all 73 B T £ A% £ [8] 1) 466 7 7 26 55 A5 s 00 9 A2 o 4 1
the employees for their valuable contributions during the Group’s  HH & B -

transformation to an asset-light business model.

Chang Chih-Kai FiE
Chairman kAol
Hong Kong, 24 March 2022 HE >, —EF 4 =A=+MH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BIL I W v B2 23

In 2021, sporadic coronavirus outbreaks and the emergence of new
variants continued to fuel the pandemic resurgence across the globe,
which have brought immense challenges to China and the global
economy. Despite the lingering pandemic, the coronavirus epidemic
prevention and control in China have been consolidated thanks to the
increase in vaccination rate in China, which led to a sustained steady
recovery of the national economy. In 2021, China’s economy saw
significant improvements, with a year-on-year growth of 8.1%. The
gross domestic product in the first and second quarters of 2021 has
roughly recovered to pre-pandemic levels, recording year-on-year
growth of 18.3% and 7.9%, respectively. Leveraged on the steady
recovery of the national economy, China’s retail sales of consumer
goods saw a strong rebound with a 23.0% year-on-year jump in the first
half of the year. In 2021, China’s total sales of consumer goods rose
12.5% year-on-year with a 3.9% average annual growth for the past two
years, reflecting China’s resilient consumer sentiment in a year full of
challenges.

The coronavirus pandemic has not only dealt a heavy blow to the retail
sector, but also transformed consumer behaviour from in-store shopping
to online consumption, bringing uncertainties to offline retail while
bolstering the “stay-at-home” economy. During the year, China’s online
retail sales sustained a robust expansion with a year-on-year growth
of 14.1%, while online retail sales of physical goods achieved a year-
on-year growth of 12.0%, accounting for 24.5% of the total sales of
consumer goods. It is evident that e-commerce will continue to gain
momentum in the future.

The year of 2021 was a year of major transformation for the Group.
After the large-scale business transformation, the Group’s distribution
channel has been transformed into its franchising and licensing network
and the Group has started afresh with the implementation of new asset-
light business model. The Group has shifted its focus on brand licensing
management and supply chain management, and further strengthened its
role as a brand owner.

Leveraging on its strong brand value as well as extensive experience
in the women’s footwear industry, the Group, as a bridge between
franchisees and licensees and the supply chain, authorises online
and offline franchisees and licensees to operate with the “Daphne”
brand and provides them with reliable supply chain resources, while
franchisees and licensees place orders directly in the supply chain
system.

TR B BRI A R
SAAFRBEIE R E - SR EA AR TE K
PR o BB AL > (Bl A B R R
P o A 1 e A B AR AT AR > B
PR TR AT AN R AR B EGE > I
HR8.1% o —E T —AER R R N A E
HE K BURIE £ G 71K > [\ H sy Il R 18.3% &
7.9% o 7 F| B R ALTHEREL BIR (5228 > b P AR Fp 4L
I A AR L R23.0% 0 BRSO E o
TR R EAL T A AR LR 12.5%
T AR AE Y R3.9% - B8 BT RP B 7R 0 Pk —
AR G L M .

B IEL IS 28 EE AN A A AR UIE T T
BHEMITHEE AN EE LR LEE SR TE
B ARORHEE N > W R IR (2 4895 - E 0> P
B EREFHARFFENE > FILHRE14.1% > TS
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HE— P AL A R R A

R R R A i BB DA B A L AT SE 0 S A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o BILIE w w B2 23

In an effort to further strengthen and enhance the management of the
supply chain and franchising and licensing network, the Group is
exploring in-depth cooperative opportunities with a domestic no-code
or low-code corporate digital intelligence collaborative data platform to
streamline the workflow system so as to realise quality refinement, cost
reduction and efficiency enhancement in operations and production, and
ultimately guiding the Group to achieve higher profits. The new system
is expected to be launched in early 2022, mainly to improve the supply
chain management with better communication with manufacturers
and franchisees and licensees. On the one hand, the Group, authorised
manufacturers and franchisees and licensees will be well-connected in
a systematic way from placing orders to manufacturing to delivering
orders to franchisees and licensees. On the other hand, the data
generated from the new system will allow the Group to better understand
consumer preferences and identify market trends, which will be
conducive to the Group’s product research and development to better
meet the ever-changing consumer demand.

As the Group shifted to an asset-light business model, the completion
of the disposal of inventories related to the directly-managed and
partnership stores during the year has greatly eased the Group’s pressure
from operating and administrative costs and inventory risk exposure. In
addition, the pandemic has expedited digital transformation and rapidly
reshaped consumer behaviour, thereby transforming the industry’s
future. Online consumption has been normalised and it has continued to
fuel e-commerce growth globally. In view of the changes in consumer
behaviour, the Group has adjusted its operating model accordingly,
resulting in a substantial increase in online licensing network during the
year. In 2021, the Group’s licensing fee income increased by 10 folds
as compared to last year to HK$58.2 million largely due to the initial
success of the business transformation and the rapid expansion of its
online licensing network.

Thanks to the new asset-light business model, refined human resources
structure, well-adjusted operating costs, the Group’s operations
successfully turned profitable in the second half of the year. Taking the
one-off gain on disposal of an investment property in relation to the
land resumption by Putian City Licheng District People’s Government
in China into account, the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$52.7 million for the full year of 2021. Overall, the Group has
made good progress as an asset-light brand owner and is well-prepared
to devote more resources to further improve its brand licensing business,
supply chain management, and franchisees and licensees management.

In 2021, basic earnings per share was 2.9 HK cents, compared with the
basic loss of 14.4 HK cents per share in 2020. The board of directors
does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Since the business transformation, the Group has been focusing on
brand management and the licensing business of footwear products,
including women’s dress shoes and casual shoes to franchisees and
licensees in Mainland China.

In 2021, the Group has completed its transformation from a women
footwear retailer into an asset-light brand owner with its retailing
network transformed into the franchising and licensing network. During
the year under review, the Group’s online licensing network has grown
a lot quicker than its offline network due to the on-going pandemic. As
of 31 December 2021, there were approximately 190 physical shops
and 250 online shops operated by our franchisees under the licensing
arrangement of the Group. During the year, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately HK$105.7 million (2020: HK$363.9 million),
comprising HK$58.2 million (2020: HK$5.2 million) from licensing
fee income and HK$47.5 million (2020: HK$358.7 million) from sales
of goods. In 2022, the Group will continue to take a prudent approach
in opening physical shops by franchisees, especially in cities that the
Group has not established its presence, tapping into new markets.

Aside from attaching high importance to product comfort, quality
materials and consumer experience, the Group noticed that the
“leisurisation” of outfits has been trending across the globe. In response
to the growing demand for casual wear, the Group has stepped up its
effort in developing stylish casual shoes and lower-heeled shoes to cater
the demands of the mass market. Apart from targeting independent
white-collar women as the main consumer group, the Group believes
that with the increasing spending power of the younger generation,
young consumers will play a huge role in contributing to the Group’s
future sustainable growth. Capitalising on the rising spending power of
young consumers, the Group has continued to incorporate more youthful
and trendy designs in its products to appeal to a younger demographic
to maintain its brand vitality, as well as to meet the diversified and fast-
changing preferences and demands of young consumers.

During the year, the Group debuted with the “Sugar Cube Collection”
for fall and winter. Themed around “Removing Stereotype Impression”,
the Sugar Cube series emphasises that women should not be restrained
in the social stereotype. Women do not only have to dress in a certain
way, women can also dress sweet and cool at the same time. The Sugar
Cube Collection integrated elements, such as baroque pearls, metal
hearts, bay leaf design to add a sweet nuance and elements, such as
functional metal buckles, square toe design, oversized sole, metal chains
to exude a cooler vibe, thereby creating a more stylish and youthful
look. Since its debut, the Sugar Cube Collection has become a hit on
the market during the year and well received by young customers with
positive feedbacks. Over 70% of the “Sugar Cube Collection” products
were purchased by post-90s young customers. The Group will launch
the “Bubblegum Collection” in spring 2022 to tap into the potential of
young consumers so as to further strengthen its brand positioning. In the
next season, the Group will organise a marketing event around the theme
of “like a child again” to spread the positive message that women should
keep their childhood innocence, follow their hearts and not be afraid
to unleash their full potential. In addition to launching more youthful
collections with trendy designs to expand its market share, the Group
will explore collaborative opportunities with other brands and creative
designers to cater for the taste of the segmentised market as a means to
broaden its customer base and build a stronger brand.
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Amid the slowing economic activity, the coronavirus pandemic has
been an unprecedented catalyst to digital transformation and the thriving
“stay-at-home” economy. Benefitting from this opportunity, the Group
has rapidly expanded its online licensing network during the year and
will continue to carefully adjust its franchising and licensing network
according to the pandemic situation and market condition in the future.

Moreover, the Group has invested more resources in its social media
marketing and promotion. During the year, the Group collaborated
with various social platforms to establish a deeper engagement with
its consumers and boosting brand awareness on social media platforms
that register the high volume of traffic, thereby stimulating online
discussions of the brand and ultimately driving sales for the Group. In
the future, the Group will actively yet selectively explore innovative
sales and marketing approaches on various popular social media
platforms to engage its customers and increase its market penetration.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group’s revenue mainly comprises sales of goods from directly-
managed/partnership stores and franchisees as well as licensing fee
income in Mainland China. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group’s total revenue amounted to HK$105.7 million (2020:
HK$363.9 million), a decrease of 71% compared to last year.
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2021 2020 Change
R T TH X[

HKS$ million  HKS$ million

R Yo T
Licensing fee income #F AT RE 2R A 58.2 52 +1,029%
Sales of goods & 47.5 358.7 -87%
Total revenue I 5 AE%E 105.7 363.9 -71%
Cost of sales FH LA (50.3) (230.7) -78%
Gross profit B 554 133.2 -58%
Gross margin A & 52.4% 36.6% +15.8pptH 7 &

Due to the continuing phasing out of the retail operation and clearance
of all aged stocks, revenue from sales of goods decreased by 8§7% to
HK$47.5 million from HK$358.7 million compared to last year. On
the other hand, our licensing fee income increased by over 10 times,
from HK$5.2 million to HK$58.2 million during the year. The Group’s
overall gross margin also improved by 15.8 percentage points to 52.4%
compared to that of last year.
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Other Income

Other income mainly comprises rental income, government subsidies
and interest income. The amount increased by HK$10.0 million from
HK$41.0 million in last year to HK$51.0 million for the year under
review. The increase was mainly due to the increase in gross rental
income from investment properties this year.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses (including other gains/(losses) - net,
selling & distribution expenses, general & administrative expenses and
impairment loss on financial assets but excluding the gain on disposal
of an asset classified as held-for-sale of HK$131.7 million and other
related costs of HK$27.6 million) was approximately HK$125.9 million
during the year, compared with the operating expenses of HK$411.4
million in last year. The decrease in operating expenses was mainly
attributable to the continuing scaling down of the operation.

Operating Profit/(Loss)

As a result of the above-mentioned reasons, the Group recorded an
operating profit of HK84.6 million for the year, compared with the
operating loss of HK$237.1 million in 2020.

Finance Costs

Finance costs represent interests on convertible notes and lease
liabilities, amounting to HK$4.4 million (2020: HK$0.9 million) and
HK$0.3 million (2020: HK$1.4 million) respectively during the year.

Income Tax Expense

For the year under review, the Group’s income tax expense was
HK$26.2 million (2020: HK$2.0 million), which mainly arised from the
taxable income on the disposal of an asset classified as held-for-sale.

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$52.7 million compared to a loss of HK$242.0
million last year. Basic earnings per share was 2.9 HK cents (2020:
Basic loss per share of 14.4 HK cents) for the year under review.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had equity attributable to
shareholders totalling HK$590.1 million (2020: HK$528.2 million).
Cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$227.5 million (2020:
HK$124.6 million), which were denominated mainly in Hong Kong

mENE & MM BUE IR
A Sk Sy Y + H o A 45 R oM A 4 25
A 35901 BT (ZF R AE 1 52821 #HsT)

e kR EsSEBYSE 2758 8T (%
1246 F B L) > FEMUB IR AR LA

Dollar and Renminbi. During the year, the change in balances of cash B o 4 (A » B 4 K B 4 56 (5 W) R 50 2 52 ) 19 9 A7
and cash equivalents is analysed as follows: mr
For the year ended 31 December
BREFT-H=1+—HILEE
2021 2020
- S TEFE
HK$’million HK$ million
T # # T EE- 3w
Net cash used in operating activities 287 1 ) U 1 B 4R AR (28.8) (122.6)
Capital expenditure AP S @3.5) (3.6)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant W~ MR SR
and equipment and an asset classified as T RTREL S Y EE
held-for-sale Jr 453 3K IH 135.9 16.7
Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture hES %‘A%Fﬁ% IH - 0.4
Proceeds from issue of new shares and BEAT B e S ] 4 f'f#
convertible notes B 45 3H - 58.6
Net bank interest received Tl SRAT 3 AL 0.9 0.5
Lease payments GEN=EREN (3.6) (14.1)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ST 58, 46k 336 588 ) 2 5 ¢ 2.0 6.4
102.9 (57.7)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net gearing ratio was in net
cash (2020: net cash) position. Current ratio as at 31 December 2021
improved significantly to 2.7 times (2020: 1.5 times). Management will
continuously monitor the Group’s financial performance and liquidity
position and it believes that the Group has sufficient working capital and
financial resources for its operation in future.

Use of Net Proceeds

In October 2020, the Company completed the allotment of 164,914,238
new shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.1817 per share and
issuance of convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
RMB25.3 million with the initial conversion price of HK$0.221 per
share and raised net proceeds of approximately HK$57.3 million after
deducting direct transaction costs.

In December 2020, the Company disposed 100% equity interest of its
indirectly held subsidiary at a consideration of approximately HK$23.2
million which was received in April 2021.

In January 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in
Mainland China entered into an agreement with Putian City Licheng
District People’s Government (the “Government”) in relation to the
land resumption by the Government. The proceeds of approximately
HK$134.6 million were fully settled by the Government. The net
proceeds (after deducting compensation to existing tenants and other
related expenses and taxes) were approximately HK$80.8 million.
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The total net proceeds from the above-mentioned transactions amounted
to approximately HK$161.3 million. As at 31 December 2021, the use
of net proceeds was as follows:

bl 2R G AR AR R A R A S 1613 EHE T o R
ZECETZAZT—H > I IE A & W
T

Accumulated Actual  Accumulated
net proceeds amount  net proceeds Unutilised
Planned utilised as at utilised  utilised asat  amount as at
amount to 1 January during 31 December 31 December
(in HK$’ million) be utilised 2021 the year 2021 2021
I 2
REF +ZH RZZRZF
—H—H =+—H +=A
ZFteHA ENER RFCBi =+—H
(F &) AIEE SO SR BHE® PasESE WABHSH
Settlement of trade payables to RN R 5
suppliers, and payment of JEAT UK > 3 ST
purchase price of merchandises i 1Y 4% 94.7 26.9 67.8 94.7 =
Improvement of existing TEHANEETA
e-commerce business platform 11.5 9.7 1.8 11.5 -
Brand advertising and promotion i B 5 1412 8 B ¢
expenses 8.0 - 8.0 8.0 -
Enhance liquidity position and for  JIIl % $i 8 & 4 #R I K A
other general corporate purposes A — M ¥ H & 47.1 11.2 35.9 47.1 =
Total At 161.3 478 1135 161.3 -
Foreign Exchange Risk Management B BE 2 B 4 PR

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures and the Group
may use forward foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation
in the relevant foreign currency is anticipated. During the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group did not enter into any foreign exchange
forward contract to hedge the foreign exchange risk exposure. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk was not
significant.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no pledged assets (2020: Nil).

Capital Expenditure and Commitments

During the year, the Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$3.5
million (2020: HK$3.6 million) mainly for office renovation. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had no material capital commitments.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 75 (2020: 150)
employees predominantly in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Employee benefits expense for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
HK$38.5 million (2020: HK$126.0 million). The overall decrease of
69% in employee benefits expense was mainly due to the reduction
in headcounts and cost control measures as a result of business
transformation.
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The Group values its human resources and recognises the importance of
retaining high calibre employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured with reference to market conditions and terms as well as
individual qualifications. In addition, share options, share appreciation
rights and discretionary bonuses may be granted to eligible employees
based on the performance of the Group and of the individual employee.
The Group also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical
insurance schemes, staff purchase discounts and training programmes to
employees.

As sporadic coronavirus outbreaks are still scattering all over the
world, unpredictable disruptions may rattle consumer sentiment and
hammer the retail sector. Even though China sustained the continuous
and steady recovery of the national economy in 2021, the complicated
and uncertain external environment and global sporadic flare-ups may
pose some obstacles in the road to a full recovery of consumption and
the overall economy. Looking ahead to 2022, the Group is cautiously
optimistic about the overall market sentiment and will continue to
prudently operate as an asset-light brand owner.

In view of the ever-changing consumer behaviour and preference, the
Group will uphold its consumer centric strategy and embrace changes
by developing more distinctive women’s dress shoes and casual shoes
with trendy designs that better represent its target consumers in order to
keep up with the market trends and better satisfy the segmentised market
demands and consolidate its role as a brand owner.

Capitalising on the fast-growing e-commerce market, the Group will
selectively expand its online licensing network. Although the Group’s
online licensing network has been growing much quicker than the
offline licensing network in the past year, the Group believes that
brick-and-mortar presence will still play a significant role in promoting
the “Daphne” brand. Therefore, the Group aims to expand its offline
franchising and licensing network in order to strike a better balance
between its online and offline network. However, the Group will
take the actual pandemic situation and operating environment into
consideration and prudently adjust the scale of the network accordingly
and strictly select reputable franchisees and licensees.

Thanks to the asset-light business model, the Group has made a solid
turnaround during the year and will continue to push forward strategic
planning in strengthening and enhancing the management of the supply
chain and the franchising and licensing network to further improve
efficiency, product quality and the Group’s profitability, thereby
securing a more favourable market position. Despite the on-going
pandemic, the Group believes that the national economy will gradually
progress towards a full recovery and the efficacy of its business
transformation will continue to be manifested in 2022. The Group will
continue to make adjustments to the model to enhance operations and
drive the sustainable development of the Group, endeavouring to create
greater value for its shareholders.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. CHANG Chih-Kai, aged 41, has been an executive director of
the Company since November 2004 and has been appointed as the
Chairman of the board of directors since May 2017. He was also the
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company from April 2016 to
October 2020. Mr. Chang is also a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is mainly
responsible for the management of the Board, product development and
supply chain management of the Group.

Mr. Chang studied a bachelor’s degree of art in Auckland University
after graduated from Pakuranga College in New Zealand. He is the
brother of Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao, an executive director and CEO, and
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. CHANG Chih-Chiao, aged 39, joined the Group in 2007 and has
become an executive director of the Company since June 2009. He has
been appointed as the CEO of the Company since October 2020 and is
currently responsible for strategic and business planning of the Group.
He also specialises in product design and marketing functions.

Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Visual Communication
from Northumbria University in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chang is the
brother of Mr. Chang Chih-Kai, the Chairman and an executive director,
and also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wang Jungang, aged 39, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company and Chief Operating Officer (“COO”) since
October 2020. He is responsible for the overall sales operation and the
development of brand licensing business of the Group. Mr. Wang was
a co-founder of Shanghai Tai Yue E-Commerce Ltd., also known as
Tailorism, an online made-to-measure startup company which aims to
provide solutions for fitting of clothing based on 3D modeling and big
data computing, and acted as its chief executive officer from October
2014 to October 2020. He has extensive experience in establishing
financial models, and strategic and business operation planning. He was
previously the chief operating officer of Shanghai Muyao Textile Ltd.
(Shirley Pajamas) from February 2012 to September 2014 and worked
at Morgan Stanley Management Service (Shanghai) Ltd. as an analyst
from August 2008 to January 2012.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in Computer Software and
Theory from Peking University in July 2008 and a bachelor’s degree in
Computer Science and Technology from Nanjing University of Science
and Technology in July 2005.
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Mr. HUANG Shun-Tsai, aged 68, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2001 and is also acting as the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Huang is also a director of two health technology companies in Taiwan
and has been active in the health technology field for over 30 years.

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence, aged 62, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since September 2019. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Currently, Mr. Hon is also an independent non-executive director of the
three companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
namely Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 520), 361 Degrees International Limited (Stock Code:
1361) and SinoMab BioScience Limited (Stock Code: 3681). Between
December 2017 to May 2021, Mr. Hon was the independent non-
executive director of Jimu Group Limited (Stock Code: 8187). He was
previously the chief financial officer and company secretary of DTXS
Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620)
from June 2016 (as chief financial officer) and November 2016 (as
company secretary) until September 2018. Prior to working at DTXS
Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited, Mr. Hon worked at
a number of companies, including Auto Italia Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 720) as chief financial officer and company secretary between
December 2013 and April 2016, China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 3818) as chief financial officer between December 2010
and October 2012, Ka Wah Construction Materials (Hong Kong)
Limited as chief financial officer between September 2008 to December
2010, TOM Group Limited (Stock Code: 2383) between June 2001 and
February 2008 with his last position as the group finance director, and
Ng Fung Hong Limited as a company secretary of the group between
1996 and 2001. Before moving to the commercial section, Mr. Hon
worked in an international accounting firm.

Mr. Hon is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration (Financial Services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2004.
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Mr. Tan Philip, aged 39, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company since August 2021. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.

Currently, Mr. Tan has also been a non-executive director of Pacific
Millennium Packaging Group Corporation (Stock Code: 1820), a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
since December 2019. Besides, he is also a director of (i) Pacific
Millennium Paper Group Limited; (i) Chongqing Stone Tan Credit
Guarantee Company Limited, (iii) Chongqing Stone Tan Financial
Leasing Company Limited; (iv) Chongqing Stone Tan Small Business
Loans Company Limited; (v) Shanghai Asiacorp Communications
Company Limited; and (vi) Shanghai Pacific Millennium Asiacorp
Communications Company Limited.

Mr. Tan has been working as the finance service product and project
director of Stone Tan China Finance and Investment (Hong Kong)
Company Limited since January 2010. Mr. Tan worked for Nestle
Group in the United States of America, France and Shanghai,
respectively, during the period from 2004 to 2008 and held various
positions including global sales development project manager and
regional sales manager. He also served various positions including
operational manager, project manager, technical manager, general
manager and regional operational manager in the various group
companies of Pacific Millennium Packaging Group Corporation in some
period between 2008 and 2009.

Mr. Tan holds a master of business administration from University of
Nebraska, USA and the degree of bachelor of science from School of
Business, Babson College, USA.
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The Company recognises the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s success and sustainability. The Company
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
practices as an essential component of high quality and has introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the operation and growth
of its business.

1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied all the applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code except during the period from 7 July 2021 (date of passing
away of Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng, an independent non-executive
director) to 2 August 2021 (date of appointment of Mr. Tan Philip,
an independent non-executive director), the Company had only
two independent non-executive directors and did not meet the
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) having at least three independent
non-executive directors and Rule 3.21 comprising a minimum of
three members of the Audit Committee.

The board of directors (the “Board”) will continue to enhance its
corporate governance practices appropriate to the operation and
growth of its business and to review such practices from time
to time to ensure that the Company complies with statutory and
professional standards and align with the latest development.

[\°]

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for dealing in securities
of the Company by the directors. Having made specific enquiry
with all directors, all directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company also requires relevant officers and employees of
the Group are also bound by the Model Code, which prohibits
them to deal in securities of the Company at any time when he/
she possesses inside information in relation to those securities.
No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant
officers and employees was noted by the Company during the year.
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3. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.1

Board Composition
The Board and Board Committees as at the date of this report

3.

G

3.1

9 @ 4R
WA ) R R TS
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comprise:

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Members of the Board/Board Committees Date of first becoming director Committee Committee Committee
HEG/ EFAETRAANE HRMEEFZHY ENEZHE HRAZEE  HMZAEE
Executive directors
HITEF
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman) 22 November 2004 Member Member
RE I (L) “EENEF—-AZ+ZH A 5 A
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao 12 June 2009
S oyt “EENEAAT A
Mr. Wang Jungang 21 October 2020
FEREEE “ECEEFASAH
Independent non-executive directors
BLFBITEH
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai 31 July 2001 Member Chairman Member
BB “ZF-FLA=+—H A B B
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 25 September 2019 Chairman Member Member
AR SR “E-NERAZAEH EX A R
Mr. Tan Philip 2 August 2021 Member Member Chairman
NS “EF- A ZH g A B

The executive directors draw on a rich and diverse experience
from the footwear distribution and retail business through
both online and offline channels as well as brand management
while the independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate professional qualifications and management
expertise in various industries. Through active participation
in board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
board committees, all independent non-executive directors
contribute to the effective direction of the Company and to
safeguard the interests of the Company and its shareholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board was in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (representing at least one-third of
the Board), with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
except that during the period from 7 July 2021 (date of
passing away of Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng, an independent non-
executive director) to 2 August 2021 (date of appointment of
Mr. Tan Philip as an independent non-executive director), the
Company had only two independent non-executive directors
and did not meet the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) having
at least three independent non-executive directors and Rule
3.21 comprising a minimum of three members of the Audit
Committee.
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Each independent non-executive director has provided the
Company annual confirmation of his independence to the
Company, and the Company considers these directors to be
independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
names, biographies of the directors and relationship among
them are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and service of the company
secretary and senior management. Any director may request
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable request
to the Board.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated responsibilities to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company, including
implementing decisions of the Board and directing and
conducting the day-to-day operation and the management of
the Group. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed by the Board and approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
are entered.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The appointment of a new director must be approved by
the Board. The Board has delegated to the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professionals when
necessary. The Nomination Committee has established
certain guidelines to assess the candidates. These guidelines
emphasise appropriate professional knowledge and industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
possible time commitments to the Board and the Company.

Each of the directors has letter of appointment with the
Company and is appointed for an initial term of three years.
All directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and are eligible for re-election at annual
general meetings in accordance with the Listing Rules and
the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of
Association”). Every director newly appointed by the Board
is subject to re-election at the next following general meeting
after his/her appointment.
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Notwithstanding the fact that Mr. Huang has served as an
independent non-executive director for more than 9 years,
the Board is satisfied that Mr. Huang has been providing
independent and objective judgment and advice to the
Board to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole. He has also participated in all of the
board meetings and committees meetings of the Company
over the last two years. Mr. Huang has been able to fulfill the
independence requirements as an independent non-executive
director over the years, and to the best knowledge of the
directors, he is independent from other directors and the
management of the Company, and is free from any business
or other relationships or circumstances which could interfere
with the exercise of his independent and professional
judgement.

In addition, Mr. Huang is familiar with the Group’s
business and culture. He is also an entrepreneur on health
and technology industry for over 30 years who has been
and can continue to provide various advice to the Board
from different perspectives, and has contributed to the
effectiveness of the Board for the interest of the shareholders.
Besides, Mr. Huang, currently the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
has also been continuously providing valuable guidance to
the Board.

The Board is therefore of the view that the long service of
Mr. Huang would not affect his exercise of independent
judgement and was satisfied that he has the required
character, integrity and experience to continue to fulfill the
roles of an independent non-executive director.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over
management. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications. Notice of
regular board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days prior to the meeting. For other board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda of each board meeting is usually sent to all directors
together with the notice of meeting in order to give them an
opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion in the meeting. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to
directors at least 3 days before each board meeting to keep
the directors apprised of the latest development and financial
position of the Group and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.
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The Chairman and other relevant senior management
normally attend regular board and committee meetings, and
where necessary, other board and committee meetings to
advise on business development, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance,
environment, social and governance issues and other major
aspects of the Group. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to all directors for comment in due course after each meeting
and the final copy, which is kept by the company secretary, is
open for directors’ inspection.

Any material transaction, which involves a conflict of
interests for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened
board meeting. Except for those circumstances permitted
by the Articles of Association, a director who has a material
interest in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other
kind of proposal put forward to the Board for consideration
abstains from voting on the relevant resolution and such
director is not counted for quorum determination purposes.

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman of the
Board also held a meeting with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of the executive
directors during the year.

Liability insurance for directors and senior management
officers of the Group was maintained by the Company with
coverage for any legal liabilities which may arise in the
course of performing their duties. The scope of coverage of
the insurance is subject to review annually.

All directors should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities and of the conduct and business activities
of the Company. The Company is responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training for its directors.
Accordingly, the Company has put in place a training and
development programme for the directors including: (i)
induction programme on the laws and regulations in relation
to directors and the Company, knowledge and current
development of the Company, responsibilities and potential
liabilities of directors for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programmes
for directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all directors of the
Company have attended the online training sessions arranged
by the Company. Newspapers, magazines and other materials
relating to roles and responsibilities of directors, and
regulatory updates of the Listing Rules, environment, social
& governance issues and corporate governance development
were also provided by the Company to the directors from time
to time.
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3.8

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During
the year, Mr. Chang Chih-Kai, an executive director, has been
the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao, an
executive director, has been the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, to assist it in overseeing the
Group’s affairs. Each committee has its defined and written
terms of reference setting out its duties, powers and functions
and being posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. The board committees report regularly
to the Board on their decisions and recommendations and
they are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company as of the date of this
report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Hon Ping Cho

Terence (Chairman)
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai
Mr. Tan Philip

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executive director

The primary functions of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and
reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems, and the compliance with the applicable accounting
principles and practices, any applicable laws and the Listing
Rules and liaison with external auditors and internal auditors
of the Group.

During the financial year, three Audit Committee meetings
were held and the executive directors, the management and
the independent auditors also attended to provide necessary
information. The Audit Committee considered the audit plan,
terms of engagement and fees of the independent auditors for
the Board’s approval, as well as reviewed and approved the
non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditors. It also
reviewed the financial information of the Group including
the annual and interim financial statements, the management
letters and reports issued by the independent auditor, and
the reports on the matters of risk management and internal
control systems prepared by the Internal Audit Department.
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The Nomination Committee of the Company as of the date of
this report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai  Independent non-executive director
(Chairman)

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Independent non-executive director
Terence

Mr. Tan Philip Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Executive director

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending
suitable candidates to the Board for directorship, after
considering the independence and competence of the
nominees, to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. The Nomination Committee reviews the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and assesses the independence
of the independent non-executive directors.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Policy
and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will
review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

During the financial year, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and diversity of the Board, considered the
independence of independent non-executive directors and
recommended the re-appointment of retiring directors which
were approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting. It also made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of an independent non-executive director during
the year.
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Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee of the Company as the date of
this report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Tan Philip
(Chairman)

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai  Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Independent non-executive director
Terence
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Executive director

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual director
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all directors of the Company and senior management of
the Group and other matters relating to remuneration. The
remuneration of all directors is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that their
remuneration and compensation are reasonable.

During the financial year, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the remuneration packages of
individual directors and senior management were reviewed
and considered. They also reviewed the remuneration of
the newly-appointed independent non-executive director
and the grant of share options to executive directors and
their associates. Details of the remuneration paid/payable
to individual directors and the chief executive officer of the
Company and senior management or officers of the Group by
band during the year are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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3.10 Meeting Attendance of Board and Board Committee
Members
The attendance records of each of the directors at the
board meetings, board committee meetings, annual and
extraordinary general meeting (AGM/EGM) of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in

BI0EFGREFFRETZBGRBZ T
MmN
IEEF -+ A= HIEEE
ARNABRGZERGER EHGHTZ
B ek - B AR K M R R R 6
2 B 3 S DL s A

the table below:
Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
LE L 2e V& IT5-F Ve |
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration AGM/
Board Committee Committee Committee EGM
Tt 3 4
K/ Bk
Name of directors HHAH wEE  HRZAG  WRAZHE  FMZHEE Rk &
Executive directors HfTr#EFE
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman) & SLJeE (E ) 5/5 - 22 3/3 2/2
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao REEE 5/5 - - - 2/2
Mr. Wang Jungang A& 5/5 - - - 2/2
Independent non-executive BT EE
directors
Mr. Huang Shun Tsai I e A 5/5 3/3 2/2 3/3 2/2
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence WRAR AL e 5/5 33 2/2 3/3 2/2
The late Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng CHCEB AR IR e A
(passed away on 7 July 2021) (=R —4F
+ AL HA ) 2/2 1/1 /1 /1 2/2
Mr. Tan Philip PN e
(appointed on 2 August 2021) (R —4F
NA ZHEEZAE) 212 2/2 0/0 /1 0/0
4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION 4. & HBHE

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company. Terms of reference adopted by the Board
include the duties of the Board on corporate governance functions
to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of the directors and the
senior management and to review the Group’s compliance with the
CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

EHRFRABRTARFAMEERME  #F g2
WHE 0 I EL 5 B R S IR R 2 AT
BV R R 7 B AR 4R B A SR BOR RO S 3R
) e S e K AR BN B 2 B R A
SEEERE 5 Botmal A B < A SR T I 2 A
DU A A A IR B ik 2 R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e L o

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. The Board,
supported by the financial controllers and the Finance
Department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group. In the preparation of the
financial statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules have
been adopted, the appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied, and reasonable judgments and estimates
are properly made.

The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance in the annual and interim
reports to shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure
and announcements in a timely manner. The directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 45 to 49
of this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
for the provision of audit service for the year ended 31
December 2021 was HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000)
and non-audit services related to tax advisory and the
discloseable major transaction amounted to HK$1,118,000
(2020: HK$391,000) during the year.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment,
reappointment or removal of the independent auditors.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the independent auditor of the Company.

The Board is responsible for risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws,
rules and regulations.
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An internal audit department has been established to conduct
risk management and internal audit of the Group. It performs
risk-based audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems so as to
provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed. The work carried out by the Internal
Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee with its
findings and makes recommendations at least twice a year.
During the year, the Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.

6. COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chun Hay has joined the Group since 2007 and has
been the Company Secretary of the Company since December
2013. Mr. Cheung is currently also the vice president in finance of
the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
During the financial year, Mr. Cheung has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

7. INVESTOR RELATIONS

7.1 Communications with Shareholders and Investors
The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with its shareholders and investors. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains website at
“www.daphneholdings.com” where information and updates
on the Group’s business, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available to
the public. Shareholders and investors may address enquires
to the Company’s investor relations personnel by letter or
email. Contact details are listed on page 3 of this annual
report.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its shareholders and investors. The
Board designates personnel to maintain regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts through one-on-
one meetings, non-deal roadshows and investor briefings,
whenever necessary, to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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A B B A AR R > DUEAT AR
JeR i L oA S A o A S A R A AT
P i ) 2 A > 2o R A AR R 2 Ja B B B
AR B R A RO > LR T SE T
8 4 2 Ja e Al ) A B o R B A%
HR A AR R D ) FE A R B O U B
ZTAE > WP o0& AR Sk o N
S O A AR I B A R
R A MEET A -

oy B

REERGEAE A R LERMAAREME - I H
SE AR AR AR AR A F) 2 R
& o Se A BURF IR f A SR B B 5 @ A8 AR > I )
AN A H R HB A RS o AR I AR
o e A ST T R B 3. 20 0% A AR I R SE B
AN HLE

& # B &

7.0 B R KR E H Z

T R ) B R N T TE B AR R AT
W HEE o B S - AL
# A [ www.daphneholdings.com ] #4315 > H
iR A B A B T SE S - MAES R - A2k
VR TR CH AL E R 2 R B R R B R
DAL AT o iR K B 3 n] i 8 B A
R AN R R EEBEREANBFEL A
w o o A EORLFE S HOR AR -

ENANCIESE VK W E S § ]
LlfR - EhgmEHM AR > 7EFR EH
Bk I R R BUEE
8 MERR BB A B
Al AR B A 2 B -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e L o

There was no change in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company during the year.

For good corporate governance and with an effort to
modernise and update the Company’s constitutional
documents, the Board has proposed to the amendments of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
in accordance with the requirement of the Listing Rules.
The proposed amendments are subject to the approval by
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held in May 2022. Once approved,
the Company will published the updated Memorandum and
Articles of Association on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) since January 2019. According to the Dividend
Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia, the following factors:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(ii) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(iii) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(vi) the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and
industry’s norm;

(vii) the general market conditions; and
(viii)any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Dividends may be declared and paid to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. The declaration and payment of a
dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will continually review
the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel
the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.
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8. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

8.1

8.2

On behalf

Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Any one or more members
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The written requisition must state the objects of the
meeting and must be signed by the relevant shareholders and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong as listed on page 3 of this annual report.

There are no provisions under the Company’s Articles of
Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands
regarding procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings other than a proposal of a
person for election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary
general meeting for any business specified in such written
requisition.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the investor relations personnel
of the Company by letter or email. Details of the contact
information are set out on page 3 of this annual report.

of the board of directors

Chang Chih-Kai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in the distribution and
licensing of footwear and accessories in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reportable
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A separate “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2021” will
be published on the websites of the HKEXnews (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.daphneholdings.com) in due course in compliance
with the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Results and appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 116.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.

Donations
There was no charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year (2020: Nil).

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties
Movements in property, plant and equipment and investment properties
of the Group are set out in Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$297,963,000 (2020: HK$327,953,000). Movements
in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in Notes 28 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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Equity-linked agreements

(a) Convertible notes
The Company issued 9.0% convertible notes denominated at
RMB with the aggregate principle amount of RMB25,300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$28,633,000) on 14 October
2020. The convertible notes have a maturity of 3 years from the
issue date and can be converted into shares at the noteholder’s
option at the conversion price of HK$0.221 per share. The
maximum number of ordinary shares to be issued upon the full
conversion would be 164,541,807. Details of the movement of
the convertible notes are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b) Share options
Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements and
“Share options scheme” section below.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman)

Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Jungang

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence

The late Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng

Mr. Tan Philip

(passed away on 7 July 2021)
(appointed on 2 August 2021)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chang
Chih-Chiao, Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai and Mr. Tan Philip shall retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and based
on such confirmations, the Company is of the opinion that the
independence status of the independent non-executive directors
remained intact as at 31 December 2021.
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Biographies of directors and senior management
Brief biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

The term of the directorship of each director is generally for a period of
three years unless either party gives one month written notice to the other to
terminate the letter of appointment before the expiry of the existing term.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
and contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Interests of directors and chief executive

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

ERERPAERANBZHE

EE LRSI B 2 BB AR 19221 H -

HEZRB A

GRERERAEW WS = BRIE AT — 5
1) 73 Ah— 77 8 R D i —fE A ) A A T AR
A Wk 0 A 1k 22 AT ok o

S T T T S A0 7 A O 238 2 A 2 A e
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Number of Approximate
Number of underlying Total % of total
Name of directors Capacity shares held shares interests issued shares
#f e
L) il i o 48 %
A 5 B JB& o B H Ji& 1 % H B 25 48 5t [iFid:A
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Personal interests - 23,200,000 23,200,000 1.28
R (PN E (Note 1)
(B 3E—)
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao Personal interests - 20,200,000 20,200,000 1.11
R &L I8 N\ HE 2 (Note 1)
(Bff 5t —
Mr. Wang Jungang Personal interests - 51,800,000 51,800,000 2.86
ERMEISEE Al A HE 25 (Note 2)
(B E —
Notes: B
1. These interests represented the interests in underlying shares of the Company in ~ — - 525 HE RS R AT T I 2 IR T o R 2 AR 4 AR B
respect of share options granted to the directors. 2 WE4G o
2. The interests represented the underlying shares of the Company in respect of - HEMGRR _F T THHR T LA

share options granted to Mr. Wang on 14 December 2021, which is subject to
the approval of the independent shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to
any directors or chief executive of the Company, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (b) to be entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or (c) as otherwise to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save for the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the year
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors and chief executive of the Company (including their
spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short
positions in shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or its specified undertakings or other associated corporations.

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2021, the
Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’
interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in
respect of the directors and chief executive.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

B ESCTlER &4 A A=
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BAR 2N ) AT H A A2 ) sCH AR B I T O 3%
Y8 g7 KBRS XVER) BBy - R BR B K
HE 5 B A () MR A5 2 S RO 1) B X VR 5T M
SR 87 WS R A 2 ) K Mg 52 T 4 HE 2 SRR (B4 I
S MR R IR L S B A0k 1) A R Ak S R O B
B i S IR AT B(b) R AB R MO B R 1] 29 35200
JRURC 8K AE A 23w A7 B 00 65w A0 HE 2 B0R A - 3(e)
R A HE < JI) R A % ) g 52 P A A RO

BR A 2> w6 3 S R T ) A o R A TR AT R ] > AR
A~ AT 4w HAE A R~ AR R e
At #5835 1 L B T ST AT T 2 B > BB AR A R E K
TEATBAE (GRS 2 SR8 L T2 T4&)
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AR oy m) AR RS g S B B A 3360 2 ML T 2
frE 2 FERFETMR > R _F %+ 4
=t —H > AAFCEMEG T 5 18R IR
7 (RIAE AL R 84T BARSBE L) B o hoF 4 3
AL DA E T 9 5 A B S 2 e E AT BN B 2 WA o

T AR 25 R BB B A B e Ay 2 5

Approximate
Total % of total
Name of shareholders Capacity interests issued shares
G T
Ji& Gy #8 AR
it 3K 45 1 5 1y RE o A8 5 [EE: 4
Lucky Earn International Ltd. Beneficial interests 400,719,995 (Note 1) 22.09
B B A (Bt &E—)
Warrior Limited Beneficial interests 329,456,045 (Note 2) 18.16
4 AR (FE=)
Teresaeleven Inc. Interests of controlled corporation 329,456,045 (Note 2) 18.16
ZYENE 2 HE A (Bt sE—)
Ms. Quan Qizi Interests of controlled corporation 329,456,045 (Note 2) 18.16
Rt ZYEAE 2 HE AR (k=)
Top Glory Assets Limited Beneficial interests 174,908,895 (Note 3) 9.64
B A AR (B 5E=)
Ms. Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen Interests of controlled corporation 174,908,895 (Note 3) 9.64
RG22 + CECYNCIPA: £ (B 5E=)
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Interests of controlled corporation 176,508,895 (Note 3) 9.73
B 1 B S A and personal interests (k=)
ZYEATE 2 AR S HE
Pushkin Holding Ltd. Beneficial interests 147,740,920 (Note 4) 8.14
Bt AR (B 5P
Mr. Chen Ming-Yuan Interests of controlled corporation 147,740,920 (Note 4) 8.14
BRI 5 A ZYEATE 2 HE AR (B 5P
Mr. Ma Liang Chun Personal interests 109,862,000 6.06
R R A | ARESS
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chang Chih-Kai, the Chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of the Company, and Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao, an executive director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and their two sisters have beneficial
interests of 26%, 26% and 24% each, respectively, in Lucky Earn International
Ltd., a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

2. Warrior Limited has beneficial interests in 164,914,238 shares of the Company
and has subscribed for convertible notes of the Company. Upon full conversion
of the convertible notes, an aggregate of 164,541,807 shares would be issued to
Warrior Limited. Warrior Limited is wholly owned by Teresaeleven Inc., which
in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Quan Qizi. By virtue of the SFO, Teresaleleven
Inc. and Ms. Quan Qizi are deemed to be interested in 329,456,045 shares of the
Company held by Warrior Limited.

3. Ms. Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen and Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun have beneficial
interests of 50% each in Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed to be interested
in 174,908,895 shares of the Company held by Top Glory Assets Limited.

4. Pushkin Holding Ltd. is solely owned by Mr. Chen Ming-Yuan.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had
not been notified by any person of any interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which as recorded in the
register to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 27
August 2013 which will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to eligible participants, including any full-time or part-time employees,
executives, officers, directors of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons at the discretion of the board of directors, as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the date of approval and adoption of the Scheme
unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained. The shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme is
141,794,238 which is approximately 7.82% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.
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The total number of shares issuable under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company to each eligible participant
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant unless shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their associates shall
be subject to prior approval by the independent non-executive directors.
Share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company or any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
shall be subject to prior approval by shareholders of the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option
shall be determined by the board of directors and specified in the
letter to the grantee, which may be varied by the board of directors in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme, provided that it shall not under
any circumstances exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the relevant
option. The board of directors may, in its discretion, determine the time
or period when the right to exercise the option in respect of all or some
of the shares the subject of the option will vest.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the board of
directors and must not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted within 30 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of

HKS$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.
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During the year, 830,000 (2020: 12,200,000) share options lapsed and
121,300,000 (2020: Nil) share options were granted. There were no share
options cancelled or exercised. Details of movements of the share options
granted under the share option scheme during the year were as follows:

FIN

43 B A 830,000 (& - F4F : 12,200,000) {73 B

TR HE 2% 2% }:121,300,000 (& " F AR ¢ M) 3 1 B AE
BEPZ M o Sl B A AT A B AT o AR R s AR B R
MEGE 852 s 2 W HE > s B e -

Exercise Granted Lapsed Outstanding at
price per Outstanding at during during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant share 1 January 2021 the year the year 2021 Exercisable period
[ [
113 ~A—H +ZAZH
KA M i W AAT B EREL ERER W AT B MR
(yyyy/mm/dd) HK$ (yyyy/mm/dd)
(&/1,/1) o (&/1,/1)
(i) Executive directors HTE%
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai 2017/01/25 0.70 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
REYIEE (Note 1) (Fftit—)
2021/12/14 0.20 - 17,200,000 - 17,200,000 2022/12/31-2031/12113
(Note 2) (M3 =)
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao 2017/01/25 0.70 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
REELE (Note 1) (FitzE—)
2021/12/14 0.20 - 17,200,000 - 17,200,000 202212131 -2031/12113
(Note 2) (HiE =)
Mr. Wang Jungang 2021/12/14 0.20 - 51,800,000 - 51,300,000 2022/12/31-2031/12/13
TREIGA (Note 3) (f:E=)
(ii) Employees fE4
In aggregate 2014/01/21 450 100,000 - - 100,000 2016/01/21 - 2024/01/20
CEil (Note 4) (3£ )
In aggregate 2014/01/21 450 80,000 - (80,000) -
ait
In aggregate 2017/01/25 0.70 3,000,000 - (750,000) 2,250,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
At (Note 1) (k)
In aggregate 2021/12/14 0.20 - 35,100,000 - 35,100,000 2022/12/31-2031/12/13
At (Note 2) (k)
12,180,000 121,300,000 (830,000) 132,650,000
Notes: B 5T -
1. The share options shall vest one-third each year from the date of grant. — - JERREm R IR R = — .

2. First 40% of the share options shall vest on 31 December 2022. The remaining
30% and 30% shall vest on 31 December 2023 and 2024 respectively, subject
to fulfillment and satisfaction of the Group’s targets for the years ending 31
December 2022, 2023 and 2024 respectively as determined by the Board.

3. The grant to Mr. Wang is subject to the approval of independent shareholders of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. First 40% of the share
options shall vest on 31 December 2022. The remaining 30% and 30% shall
vest on 31 December 2023 and 2024 respectively, subject to fulfillment and
satisfaction of the Group’s targets for the years ending 31 December 2022, 2023
and 2024 respectively as determined by the Board.

4. 100% of the share options shall vest after two years from the date of grant.
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The Group implemented a share appreciation rights plan (“SAR Plan”)
to motivate and award the directors, employees, advisers, consultants,
agents, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other persons of the
Company and the Group at the discretion of the board of directors for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Under this SAR Plan, share appreciation rights (“SARs”) are granted in
units with each unit representing one ordinary share of the Company.
No share will be issued under the SAR Plan. The eligible recipients who
are granted with such incentive do not actually hold the shares, and do
not have any rights as the shareholders such as voting rights or rights to
dividends. Therefore, this does not affect the total number of the shares
of the Company outstanding and will not result in any dilution effect on
the shares of the Company.

Upon exercise of the SARs, the eligible recipients will receive, subject
to any applicable tax, a cash payment amount equal to the product of
the number of SARs exercised and the difference between the exercise
price and market price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise.
The Company recognises compensation expense of the SARs over the
applicable vesting period.

Under the SAR Plan, the exercise price of the SAR shall be determined
by the board of directors and must not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.
The SARs granted pursuant to the SAR Plan are valid for 10 years from

the date of grant and upon the expiry of which all unexercised SARs
shall automatically lapse.

Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

7S 0 B e B 6 (ELHE S B (R 3 (E ME G D)
R T S 17 R M S B B A A ) S AR AR 2
=B EEA R AU SR - KF -
S T AT T EL A A S A S A o R R AE R

R G 5 494 (BB G ) > R 3 396 (EDMEE (BT 03 g (e D)
T2 Bt > A A AURAS 2 R — e A B

ABE 08 P 4 05 AR B 03 36 (LM G ) 3% 4T« B AR Bl
NAEAZ T 1 8 i 5 7 00 B0 B 150 A ey > RS REBRE A

BRI SRR ) 2 W - 0 45 5 R i I B 2 A o
PRI - 7 36 AR 20 ) B IR BB 00 48 SOOI 06 5 2B R AR
GLISOREEEE ST XS

TR AT (B0 3 (EHEAR - & M B A W B A0 45 7t
I A7 (S P A7 48 (0 AR 0 ofe DA AT (ol A B AR 0 W) A A
FrOE B 2 T8 2 22 R 2 Bl kO (ZEARIUAM A T 7 T
BUIA) o A2 ) 96 T B J S0 T ke 0 L 17 3 o 22
fHBASE

M G ERERT T > e EE T EhEEE
il R BT T 81 fe i

(a)  JBEOR A2 s H A2 W 22 r A B SR AE R TR 2 ik
E ;

(b) Mty S HA  H AT 8 € H 7R I S T
H ¥R R PR Pl 8 5 &

(c) MeyTifE -

RRAR e 3 94 (LM T 30 - %27 2 B 3 (LM ey 42 4E H

EEF - A RO R AR R A RO JE AR > B A
ARAT 2 0y 38 (LR B O



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
=R

During the year, 1,450,000 (2020: 15,050,000) SARs lapsed and no
SARs (2020: Nil) were granted, cancelled or exercised under the SAR
Plan. Details of the movements in the SARs granted under the SAR Plan
during the year were as follows:

N F1,450,000 (ZF ZFA4E 1 15,050,000) 143 1% 4
HEREIC R > FNIG M (3 AR ¢ M) B0 0 (R
MR B 0y 16 (R R B 42 - SRR aAT 6 - RN >

R A5 B 3 346 (L RE 51 ) 152 th 2 T 03 386 (B RE 2 5 B 5 1
mr

Lapsed Outstanding at

Outstanding at during 31 December

1 January 2021 the year 2021

/AR e /R e 2

—H—H +#H#+ H

Grantees 3N i A AT il EWRR W A AT
(i)  Executive directors (i) HBiIrT#EZH

Mr. Chang Chih-Kai RE L 600,000 (600,000) -

Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao R AL 600,000 (600,000) -

(ii) Employees (ii) 1E 5
In aggregate G5t 250,000 (250,000) -
1,450,000 (1,450,000) -

There were no SARs outstanding as at 31 December 2021 and will be no
further grant of SARs under the SAR Plan. The Board has approved the
termination of the SAR Plan with effect from 24 March 2022.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 33% and 67%, respectively, of
the Group’s total revenue during the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 43% and 93%,
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases during the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the directors owns 5% or more of
the Company’s share capital, had an interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Major transactions

In January 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement with Putian City Licheng District
People’s Government in China in relation to the land resumption.
The consideration of an aggregate compensation is approximately
RMB110.2 million. This constitutes a major transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules. For more details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 3 January 2021 and the Circular dated
21 January 2021.
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Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from or against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
during the financial year and up to the date of this report. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the board of directors

Chang Chih-Kai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 3 % B

To the Shareholders of Daphne International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Daphne International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 50 to 116, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

B S W8 1 e 2 e A PR 2 ] B R
(B[] 42 7 055 A 7 19 R 23 )

2R

EMOHFNE

E S W I PR P AT FR 2 ®) (DL R [ 3 A W) 1) R
Wi 2 7] (LA A [ B4 1)) B B850 R 116 H Y
A Mp R BIE

. AE L A=t HNEREEAE
%

o HEZHILFEERES WL

o BEZHILFEEE W R

o BEZPILFEE ARG HE RS

)3
&

%5

o WEZHILFEMNGABEERER X

o AREMBHCRM S EE g B E &
FoAth 5 W R

A =R

WAEE T > ZF ARG MR O RIER B Gt
B A ) R o o i o5 4 ) U R o 4t e e T
BEBR -F -4+ =+ — LS MHIR
DR Az H AR AR AR A MBS R BL R AR S Bl
TR > Sl O N i O R R ) 9 B R B E % 2
o

= Y B

TAM O ARYR A s &l Rl 2 & AR A B CF ol A YR UD)
HEAT FE R o FAMAE 3% 2 HE HI R ORYE B9 AL CAE AR
[ A% Bh 0 7 A A SV R ROR IS O BAT R 4 o
VEHE — 25 [ 2t -

TAAAG > TP AT 1 A FH IR R RE S
o AN 4 7 R Al o

B

i

A

AR A s B w2 B A A 1Y (R &t i 2 7 < D)
(AR RR TSP R0 D) - Fe M8 S it s 4R W > 3 2 i AT
S S e A S A AR AT -

REOOE UE B OBR SRR AR A :?:*@@%’zm



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M 3 % B

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, [ % 4% 51 =5 JE 2 R 2 A0 B2 00 B - 58 5 B A
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial %% & MBI EMFEFT A EENFIE - BLRIHE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the £ T 8 51 5 48 47 A A 0 36 B i B RN HEAT IR
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, B o M A S s e H IR L E B E A -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

FAM A w1 Hh ] A B S o A A G T

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Refer to Notes 2.7 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
The Group’s investment properties were measured at cost and
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised impairment losses of HK$12,214,000 for certain
investment properties. Management engaged an external valuer to
determine the recoverable amount of those investment properties
based on market comparable method and income method. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including expected unit
market price and market rents, growth rates and discount rates.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance
and significant management judgement and estimates involved
in determination of recoverable amounts of those investment
properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s judgment and
estimates applied in assessing the impairment of certain investment
properties included:

. Understanding management’s controls and processes for
assessing impairment of investment properties and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and the judgement involved
in estimation of impairment of those investment properties;

. Evaluating the valuer’s competence, capabilities, independence
and objectivity;

. Comparing certain key inputs made by the valuer to estimated
range, determined by publicly available information; and

. Involving our internal valuation expert to assess the
valuation methodology, certain key assumptions used and
the determination of recoverable amounts of the investment
properties with impairment.

Based upon the above, we found that the key assumptions used by
management in the impairment assessment of certain investment
properties to be supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

m Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

FATE BB > B ARG B R B R T A AE
SO BB R T A R R B R PR AT HEOR A
Sl B A 46 AN R R R o A R
P B ) e A A BRIE 2 S AR
M LA B R o FRAM S B AR i A R 1 AT T A
N8 ESURFEAET AL - & BLOR G2 = K -F 1 £R
ae > fH A DR 5 4% IR o 3 T D MEAT IO S T
TE e — K 5 R B A A IRF AR RE B B o B R R FT
DA p JUCRE BB R T > A R B TE A A A Gl
R A T RE S B AR A IV B R O RO AR S
i 2 BT A A BE IR TR E 5 B AT BR Y B R RO T
EERK -

TR AR (it ol o TR B AT 3 w0 AR op > AP
TR > PR T R R o AR

o IR Tl R A T BB R T A B A B
FATAE B R B BRI A S B > it S BT A T
T J DA 350 7 06 Ja B DA % BT L A
Fal B - AF R BATE S HE o /R AT
B AR 2 b o PRI A B B PR R I A
B0 R B AL F g R A A AE % B R
17T 35 5014 A G R R ) B o

o T RRBELTE AR B A R RS ] > LSRR A A
FERR T > (HH A S0 I S A ] S 4 R A L
TEREA -

o FRAEE TR 6 5B MM b A 3t
iR B 5 1 2 FL M

o HEBRMIAE G ELEE RS AR A
it o AR T M HUAY B RHIR S o AR E R T A A B
FIE T DU B A R RS B E P > ST AT RE
BOB A A R A AS B RE ) A R BEE o
RTAN Ty A R AHEE M - QA BAE
SR S P AR O B R AR S MR R Y
AR B R o B A B A R R 2 B A
BER I LR B T L o TRAM A & R A A R
ety H Ak By B 00 8 GBS o SR - R IA
sl L AT AE A S A AN RE R A A o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 3 % B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Xu Yi Jing Vivian.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

o WA R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #% ~ % " —4+ " H=+—H L4

2021 2020
e M =t
Note HK$’°000 HK$°000
R 51 Tt TH T
Revenue Ik % 5 105,717 363,921
Cost of sales 5 & A (50,305) (230,689)
Gross profit EA 55,412 133,232
Other income HAb YA 6 51,020 40,977
Other gains/(losses) — net HAhlke 45 (5 8) — 1F 4 7 117,105 (11,164)
Selling and distribution expenses BB K 8B X (22,862) (195,839)
General and administrative expenses — ¥ S AT BB 5Z (115,259) (166,921)
Impairment loss on financial assets & Rl A 7 WA S 1R (825) (37,426)
Operating profit/(loss) REEF, k5 1R) 8 84,591 (237,141)
Finance costs S WA 9 (4,740) (2,324)
Share of losses of associates and JRE A B A ) R
a joint venture BEMNEZ R 17,18 (26) (304)
Profit/(loss) before income tax s Jir 15 B4 il 2R (ks 18) 79,825 (239,769)
Income tax expense Ji 15 B B 52 10 (26,249) (1,956)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREFH ER) 53,576 (241,725)
Attributable to: LI 7 77 HE
Shareholders il 52,723 (241,987)
Non-controlling interests T 42 1) v W A 853 262
53,576 (241,725)
Earnings/(loss) per share, basic and diluted %R 3 A% K #8928 R, (5 18)
(HK cents) (Al ) 11 2.9 (14.4)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B T 4% T W AR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #% — % " —4+ " H=+—H L 4%

2021 2020
R TR TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt TH T
Profit/(loss) for the year SENEFL () 53,576 (241,725)
Other comprehensive income At 42 T AR
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 7~ 7] Ji H- & 5 #7057 2 18 s H9
profit or loss: IHH :

_Currency translation differences  MWwE® 1048 46,442
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 4 K & i W 25, (f548) 48%8 63,994 (195,283)
Attributable to: LIR& TN -

Shareholders Ji% 3R 61,612 (200,938)
Non-controlling interests IE Fe 0 M 2 2,382 5,655
63,994 (195,283)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEaEERRER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 jA =&~ —4+ " H=+—H

2021 2020
=E R = =
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
R 51 T# T T T
Non-current assets I B B
Property, plant and equipment ERN NS ] 14 18,740 19,976
Investment properties [id<¢/ES 15 541,188 537,039
Right-of-use assets i 16 13,523 9,086
Interests in associates AV N T 2 R A 17 1,200 1,036
Interest in a joint venture G EA R 18 - -
S B . 367,137 _
Current assets i B e
Inventories & 19 - 41,569
Trade receivables 2 5y E W 3K 20 7,653 24,251
Other receivables, deposits A JE i R K
and prepayments i g T FAAT RIA 21 26,928 69,077
Cash and cash equivalents ST ST ERE Y] 22 227,489 124,567
262,070 259,464
Assets classified as held-for-sale NE B ERE L ERE 23 - 32,077
262,070 291,541
Current liabilities i B £ 1K
Trade payables B 5 AT IR K 24 4,107 69,201
Other payables and accrued charges Al A R 3 S E R 25 46,917 97,287
Lease liabilities HEAM 16 3,107 2,988
Contract liabilities BRI A 12,739 16,786
Current income tax liabilities R HA oy 15 i A £ 29,693 5,778
... 6563 192,040 _
_Netcurrentassets wWEwWEEH® 165507 99.501 _
Total assets less current liabilities R A T B £ 740,158 666,638
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
M EERERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 jA =&~ —4+ " H=+—H

2021 2020
SR TR R
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
B 5 Tt T

Equity attributable to shareholders JBe S0 M A% HE #5
Share capital JE A 26 181,406 181,406
Reserves A 28 408,646 346,824
590,052 528,230
Non-controlling interests I 42 ) Pk HE AR 111,679 109,297
Total equity HERE A 701,731 637,527

Non-current liabilities Ik B A 1E
Convertible notes LI diES 29 29,377 24,571
Lease liabilities iERES=E 16 4,301 -
Deferred income tax liabilities A8 SIE T 15 B IH B R 30 4,749 4,540
384 29,111

Total equity and non-current liabilities HHRE 45 B IR U B AL 0 740,158 666,638

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 116 were approved  #50E 116 B2 45 MBERECHEHEGH —F ——
by the board of directors on 24 March 2022 and were signed onits 4= W H#MMER R EFSEE -
behalf.

CHANG CHIH-KAI CHANG CHIH-CHIAO
R REE
Director Director
#HH HH

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction DA [ 454 %7 £ i 55 108 BUAR B 5% — OF BE v -
with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
S50 W o 5 B 3R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % & ~—4+ " H=+—H IH4F %

Attributable to shareholders

Tt 38 Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
e e il
Bt A ikt HE 5 At
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
B ik T THT Tt Tkt
_Atllanvary2020 REFZLE-A-R 164914 507797 103642 796353
(Loss)/profit for the year ER EH) BRI - (241,987) 262 (241,725)
Currency translation differences e 54, 7 3 - 41,049 5,393 46,442
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 21 (F518) /A % - (200,938) 5,655 (195,283)
Write-back of unclaimed dividends )RR UK B - 42 - 42
Issue of new shares BAT R 16,492 13,473 - 29,965
Issue of convertible notes BEAT 4R A S5 - 6,450 - 6,450
Total transactions with sharcholders  SUBAZHM® 16492 1995 - 36457
At 31 December 2020 and WNoE-FEL_H=1T—HR
o Mamwary2021 - SFSFECACR 181406 346824 109297 637,527
Profit for the year G = 52,723 853 53,576
Currency translation differences i 50, 7% 31 - 8,889 1,529 10,418
Total comprehensive income  REMALHE - 61,612 2,382 63,994
Share option scheme: JERE R -
Value of grantee services RIE N R AE 28 - 210 = 210
 Total transactions with sharcholders WA HM®E - 210 - 210
At 31 December 2021 RoE 4= H=1—H 181,406 408,646 111,679 701,731

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GaBlehnaR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # % —%

—HEtT A= HIREE

2021 2020
RO e G S
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B 5 T# TH T
Operating activities REWB)
Cash used in operations EEH 2 W4 31(i)(a) (26,439) (121,248)
Income tax paid AT R (2,343) (1,402)
_Netcashused in operating activities  MEWHIH 2B Ewem (28782) (122,650)
Investing activities BEWHH
Interest received B A8 921 499
Acquisition of property, plant and B - WE
equipment & (3,546) (3,605)
Proceeds from disposal of property, tEYIE - E R
plant and equipment and an asset % T o K A R AR
classified as held-for-sale 8 2 K 31(i)(b) 135,869 16,685
Proceeds from disposal of interest ELEMEMR
in a joint venture W = 403
Netcash generated from investing activities  BUEWAB) L2 B ewmm 133244 13982
Financing activities & T B
Principal element of lease payments SN R AR EH A (3,218) (12,666)
Interest element of lease payments HE A2 FE uMﬁJ\ (342) (1,412)
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes AT LS S P S - 28,633
Proceeds from issue of new shares BEAT T L T A5 Ak - 29,965
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE) (rH) R
___financing activities Reds 3560) 44,520
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash e LB &5 EY
equivalents wm, (kb)) ¥ 100,902 (64,148)
Cash and cash equivalents R—H—HZBl4 &
as at 1 January &% EY 124,567 182,293
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes TE 2% 5 ) 2 4% 2,020 6,422
Cash and cash equivalents WA=t —HzHER
as at 31 December B & 5 Y 22 227,489 124,567
The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in DL F4: A4 & L MEE AT B M s —0F B -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

[\°]

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
distribution and licensing of footwear and accessories in Mainland
China.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1- 1111,
Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKAS
39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

The adoption of the above new and amended standards
did not have any material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
New and amended standards not yet adopted

(ii)

Certain new and amended standards have been
published that are not mandatory for the 31 December
2021 reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments
or interpretations are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

Amendments to
Annual Improvements
Project

Amendments to
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16
and HKAS 37

Revised Accounting
Guideline 5

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Hong Kong
Interpretation 5
(2020)

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018 - 2020'

Narrow-scope
Amendments'

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations’

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current?

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single
Transaction?

Presentation of
Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause?

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies?

Definition of Accounting
Estimates?

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

Effective date is to be determined

2 FEFFIECOR (#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

% B U 5 ¥ e W R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

(i) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provided evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
former shareholders of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEFEBUR (4)
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued) 2.2 H#AWRH (#)
(i) Subsidiaries (Continued) i) FEARE(H)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
fair value of non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
shareholders in their capacity as shareholders of the
subsidiary. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amount
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Associates and joint arrangements

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(i)

Associates and joint arrangements (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable that the
investments in the associates and joint arrangements
are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint
arrangement and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of losses of associates and
join ventures” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (Continued)

(ii) Associates and joint arrangements (Continued)
Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised loss is
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that make strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, while the
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies (Continued)

@iv)

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Currency translation differences arising from foreign
operations may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; while currency translation differences arising from
non-foreign operations are not reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency translation
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values, where appropriate, over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 20 to 50 years
Leasehold improvements 3 to 5 years
Plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures

and equipment, and motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment
are the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, comprising land and buildings, are
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
the investment properties are stated at historical costs less
accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment loss,
if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (Continued)

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent
expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the asset
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the property will flow to the Group and the
cost of the property can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values. Estimated useful lives of land and
buildings are from 20 to 50 years.

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed regularly. An
investment property’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.8).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of
the relevant assets and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each balance sheet
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEGEIER (4)

(CONTINUED)
2.9 515 8 A JE o B R (s A AL )

2.9 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-

sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held-
for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and the sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits and financial assets
that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value
less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal
group), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment
loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or
disposal group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held-for-sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held-for-sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale and the assets
of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated balance
sheet.

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as those to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flow.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss “FVPL”,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit
or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classified its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included
in other income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in “other
gains/(losses) — net” together with foreign exchange
gains and losses.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(iii)
for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEGEIER (4)

(CONTINUED)

2.11 Convertible notes 2.11 A #5137

Convertible notes that can be converted into equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments, which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible notes is determined using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost, calculated using the effective interest method,
until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The equity
component is recognised in equity, net of any tax effects,
until either the notes are converted or redeemed.

If the notes are converted, the relevant equity component and
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time of
conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium
for the shares issued. If the notes are redeemed, the equity
component is transferred to retained profits.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less applicable variable selling
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEEGEIEOR (4)

(CONTINUED)

2.14 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and other
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. See Note 3.1(iii)
for further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade and other receivables for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Current and deferred income taxes
The income tax for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the places where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

@)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses with reference to a number of factors including
the Group’s operating results, individual and market
performance and directors’ discretion. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are established by
governments or separately administered funds. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The Group’s contributions are recognised
as employee benefits expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
retaining an employee of the Group over a specified
period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each
balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation (Continued)

(iv)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new award are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award.

If an equity award is cancelled by forfeiture, when the
vesting conditions (other than market conditions) have
not been met, any expense not yet recognised for that
award, as at the date of forfeiture, is treated as if it had
never been recognised. At the same time, any expense
previously recognised on such cancelled equity awards
is reversed from the accounts effective as at the date of
forfeiture.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the
Group measures the services acquired and the liability
incurred at the fair value of the liability. Until the
liability is settled, the Group remeasures the fair value
of the liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the Group recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are
discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEEGEIEOR (4)

(CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 21918 B A (4)

(v) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of economic resources will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligations
using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition

(i) Licensing fee income

Licensing fee income represents revenues from
franchisees and licensees. Revenue is recognised
when control of the Group’s authenticated products is
transferred from licensees to franchisees, being when
the products are delivered to the franchisees. Revenue
is presented net of credits granted to franchisees. No
element of financing is deemed present.

Credits are awarded to franchisees based on volume of
products purchased. It is recognised as a deduction of
revenue and the receipts in respect of which are deferred
and recognised as contract liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.21 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii) Sale of goods — wholesale
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products.

The goods are often sold with sales discounts. Revenue
from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. No element of financing is deemed present.

A contract liability for sale of goods to wholesaler is
recognised if the measure of the remaining performance
obligation exceeds the measure of the remaining rights
to payments from customers.

(iii) Sale of goods - retail
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
Group sells a product to the customer. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods.

2.22 Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the incentives will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

2.23 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEEGEIEOR (4)

(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued) 224 L8 (%)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
fund necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEEGEIER (4)

(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued) 224 ML (4)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise office equipment.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s and the Group’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the board of directors and the shareholders of the
Company, where appropriate.

2.26 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year.

Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

o P R O A AR T A

- HEAENMGFESE

o TEAE MBS B L HT SN B A B AT
R AN R R 09 FH B R

o WIREHEEM &
o TERRA -

o PR R — T T R SRR R
JUY g S R ST R A R R PR T
Un A AR ) PR E AT O R RE > HIUAEARR
19 ) (o 5 i 0 R S o R A
P -

SELARG 8 e 0 72 AL S0 A BR) ) R0 SRR 4% T ARGk
"é BREM > FEAEG o AN ERHEM
EMA T MASEEENAE - EEE
B LA I A o

SR EAE 2y A U s B LR 2 FL i
AAE R B0 IR 4 BRI TR o T MR AL
LB P 8% 75 B0 0 B 3 BT T A BRI B
F1 B AT < B - f7 A LB A A 9 IR B A <2 ik
A TR] ) 2 Bl e 2 22 ) o

2.25 it B 43 Ik

1) A 23 ) e SR A3 IR 22 Je B T S R A
2% AR (A ) e S 22 3 T K A A
O ) B A T R R e D A AR o

2.26 B B 2 F]

(i) FEARER R
A IR S AR B R B T e A ) e R
A R > BR DAAS B B4R B 3R AT
J 1 IR - 2 B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.26 Earnings per share (Continued)

(ii)

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

. the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest rate risk, credit risk

and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management

focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial

performance. The use of financial derivatives to manage

certain risk exposures should be approved by the board of

directors.

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with
transactions primarily settled in RMB and HKS.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the Group’s entities to which they relate.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from
various currencies, primarily with respect to HKS.

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular review of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

As at 31 December 2021, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, the profit/(loss) for the year
would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,184,000 (2020: HK$2,688,000) as a result of
the translation of HK$ denominated cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
mainly arising from bank deposits bearing interest at
floating rates and the interest income of which was not
material during the year. The interest rate of convertible
notes was fixed and the Group do not have interest rate
risk associated with the convertible notes.

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits and bank deposits stated in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. Licensing fee income received from
franchisees are collected in advance of transfer of the
goods.

The majority of the Group’s trade and other receivables
arose from credit sales to trading customers. The Group
has policies in place to evaluate and monitor the credit
terms and payment history of its customers to ensure
recoverability of trade debts. The Group also reviews
the balance of trade receivables at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables is made.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords in Mainland China and Hong Kong and are
due to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy agreements
and handover of the leased premises. In accordance
with expected credit loss, the Group has provided a loss
allowance.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, substantially all
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with
registered financial institutions located in Mainland
China and Hong Kong which are of acceptable credit
quality based on management’s assessment. The Group
has a policy to limit the credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect any
significant loss arising from non-performance of these
counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 Bl ke A BE ()
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 s B A R (B
(iii) Credit risk (Continued) (i) 15 BB (4)
Impairment of financial assets 2 i B 1
The Group has the following types of financial assets A B DA B 2 4 il E ZE A2 TN
that are subject to the expected credit loss model: 15 £ e HE BB B R
. Trade receivables . B 5 MEUT IR
. Deposits and other receivables . e 4 T - Ath JRE Wi 3
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach A 42 18 B ) A s B 5 i o 4 R SR 0 B 1
to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime fLEstEEIE SRR WHTEY
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. S JEE AT 5 4 30 30 M 1R B AR o
To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables ARt EHEGEREEE - 82 BIURK
have been grouped based on the ageing and shared credit AR 5 R i A0 S ] A L B R 0
risk characteristics. The expected loss rates are based on Ao ARG HBARILN T - —4F
the payment profiles of sales over a period of 24 months A=t — HuRdm A N EN X
before 31 December 2021 and the corresponding A5 1% W A S 0 T 4 £ ) A E JRE S 45
historical credit losses experienced within this period. BRME - G HIEARCAE LW
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current B DU R P ST RN AR )
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic ) T R TS s B O TR R I e
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.
On that basis, the lifetime expected credit loss F e > A AR AR e R
allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was A=+ —HAZ2ENE E:‘EE
determined as follows: BEHEE M T

91-180  Over 181
1-30days  31-60days 61-90days  dayspast  days past
Current ~ pastdue  pastdue  pastdue due due Total
mE e @Ml wio  EMER
WA £00 EeOH  FH  EIS0A 1811 it
HK$’000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$°000  HKS$'000  HK$°000
Ti#x  F#x F#x  FEx  Ti#x  TEx  T#x

At31December 2021  RZF_—#+ZH=+—H

Gross carrying amount A i (£ 7,143 m 238 - 1,558 17259 26470
Loss allowance E R - (10) (15) - (1,533)  (17259)  (18,817)
Expected credit loss rate T 41 5 B s 3% 0% 4% 6% 0% 98% 100%

At 31 December 2020 WEZZZELZAZ—H

Gross carrying amount MR 8,991 3,151 5,449 3,551 792 27,501 49,435
Loss allowance et 1) ®) 27 25) (52)  (25,071)  (25,184)
Expected credit loss rate i M {5 B 4 % 0%* 0%* 0%* 1% % 91%

* Rounded to zero * AEEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BAESIE B A PR (4)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MEsEbEHEE (H)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued) (iii) 15 B BB (4)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The movements in loss allowance for trade receivables
are as follows:

2l B 0 1 (A

0 BEWOR ks R s Ehan

2021 2020

SR TR B

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt T # 7T

At 1 January w—H—H 25,184 15,101

Exchange adjustment i 5, 37 B 397 1,154
Increase in loss allowance recognised in AN TE R 4 P ERR Y

profit or loss during the year T 5 458 A4 38 i 4,152 8,929

Written off during the year FINRAE (10,916) -

At 31 December w+—H=1+—H 18,817 25,184

Other financial assets at amortised cost mainly include
deposits and other receivables. Management applies the
general approach and records either 12-month expected
credit loss or lifetime expected loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase
in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit loss. As at 31 December 2021, the loss
allowance balance for expected credit loss assessed by
management on other receivables was HK$6,427,000
(2020: HK$30,304,000) and a credit of HK$3,327,000
(2020: charge of HK$28,497,000) was recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss by management was determined to be
immaterial as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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iz 3 89 A w2 0 At £ & E
T 4% A T HA RE IR K o 45 FE g
JRE I — My % Sl A TR AR A A
U e 58 LA 2R AT A5 B B in % -
R H 76 HA M5 B s 48 w2 B 7 B s 1
AR - W U IR K 2 5 &R 8 W
U e 8 LA SR B 14 > B (4% 2
HHGEEEE R RN F
T H=4—H s R A
AT AN Y TS B 1R L R A
48B3 156,427,000% 06 (T F R AR
30,304,000%5 7C) > 47 A1 g8 O R
F0B%3,327,000% 70 (Z&F 4 FFA
28,497,000%5 7C) ©

it B B MBS Y IR EAT & A
B s YE RSB O 5k 2 W (E R E > B
JERERN R R RAE+
H=+—H 2 Bl (E e 180 A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recorded a loss before tax of approximately
HK$24,197,000 if excluding the one-off gain on
disposal of an asset classified as held-for-sale and
the cost associated with the disposal. The Group
also recorded net cash used in operating activities of
HK$28,782,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had cash and cash equivalents of HK$227,489,000.

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity requirements and operating performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections which cover a period
of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2021. The directors consider that the Group, will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the coming
twelve months from 31 December 2021.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant
as at 31 December 2021.

3 W E B B (AF)

3.1 S b R (4
(iv) ¥ B & b
A ARCRA U B < L o B R A A
AR 2 B KA FE R B R AR R

HHRESE -

B A D ) e R K
BTV L (L B 2 40 504 DL
it B ok -

BE-_F -+ _HA=+—HI%&E
o WA ESE AR EREZ
W 2 — UM R B EL AR B A AR
7 4L [ % A5 B T 1E £924,197,0005
IC o A% 4 B IR B AT KL I B B R Y B
4 {F428,782,000% U o it F T —4F
FZAZF B AEENE S LB
4% {8 Y) F5227,489,000% 7T ©

B LA AR EFCATAE
i A AR T A A 1) 9 B O < e OR M AR
FH > DL B AU > LLRE Al
AL R 7 AT 0 S R AR A A T

R sgs o

AAFERFOHERBEG F - —F
ToA=ZtT—HEADR A AW
EEB SRR EHABE > AEEH
WA LM ERARWEHA %
T AEF T A S HEREFI AR S
WA EI R R A % — 4
+-A=+—H&E+_MA -

TRAELENEEAZEHBE A ZH
3k 20 ] 5% 2 A0 R 2 A AL 2 A 4R )
AR - ZREFE L SHIAH
RGBS A
H=1+—H  \RMELEILAE
TR A A T B 2 A R B R
T A% R AR ] o

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@@ﬁ’z



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BAESIE B A PR (4)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.1

S 255 A B A R ()
(v) W& 4 B ()

Between 1

Within 1 year and 5 years Total
—4ERN — B A HaEt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt TFie

At 31 December 2021 R _F_—4#H+_H=1—H
Trade payables 2 5 HE A R K 4,107 - 4,107
Other payables A 1 AT HE 3R 45,262 - 45,262
Lease liabilities & A 3,396 4,457 7,853
Convertible notes CIEi g = 39,319 39,319
52,765 43,776 96,541

At 31 December 2020 A FE - FFE+ - H=+—H
Trade payables 2 5 HE A R K 69,201 - 69,201
Other payables At 1 AT HE 3K 55,108 - 55,108
Lease liabilities L & 2,988 - 2,988
Convertible notes nJ 6 At 25 - 38,689 38,689
127,297 38,689 165,986

3.2 Fair value estimation of financial instruments
Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured
according to the levels of the fair value hierarchy defined as
follows:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

(ii)) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices); and

(iii) Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

Details of the fair value of the investment properties are
disclosed in Note 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
as well as maximising returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, obtain new bank
loans or issue new shares.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net cash (2020:
net cash) position (the balances of cash and cash equivalents
exceeded the aggregate balances of lease liabilities and
convertible notes) by approximately HK$190,704,000 (2020:
HK$97,008,000).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

4.1 Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

3 W E B B (AF)

3.3 EA R b B
AL W B A B T EAE s IR R A SR
R AR BE ) M R R v R [ o B
540 2 Fl 4

oA S L P A L Sl RO 5
I {4 308« S5 T 9 16 O 5
2~ TSR AT (5 65 58 70 1 A
e A R

Mo —4EF A=+ —H > AEEH
AiEFH e (CFFE G E) R (R
G KO S E Y &5 R A R B R o] R
JBEAE 5 8 45 6 > £9190,704,0009 70 (&
EAE 1 97,008,0004 90) ©

4 G EH RO B

A AR R 1 KB I AR R R > B AR B R
A B DU o BB R B A 2 A R
Al Al 5 R B -

A T R H 08 3 T B o SL
W » 1L 2 R I B ) 2 BB
S o 5 TSR A T R B 1 2
T 082 R T (25 G O 8 2 2 o
AT -

4.1 BB
7 S 8] JE 280 A B A R TR I 2 T AR R PR
E T 15 ol 18 40 IR 2B VR 1R B - H oW
A 2 TE A T I BLE 2 A 5) EHE -
iy fo A Tl 5 6 SR L) B R Bk KRR A AN 0 2=
BN R AR e 0 (B 2 BV IR A A
ol TE 38

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁ’z



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 0 55 i R I

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 WEGFHE G R AE ()

AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities on temporary differences
relating to undistributed profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Mainland China are recognised to the extent that profits
are expected to be distributed as the Company controls and
pre-determines the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and management expects it is probable that profits will be
partly retained and not distributed from these subsidiaries
to their foreign holding companies in the foreseeable future.
Management reassesses its expectation at each balance sheet
date.

4.2 Impairment of property, plant and equipment,

investment properties and right-of-use assets

At each reporting date or whenever a change in circumstances
occurs, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to assess whether there is an indication that assets
are impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. If the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in distribution and licensing of
footwear products and accessories in Mainland China.

Chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. Information reported to the
executive directors, for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of performance, focused specifically on the revenue
analysis by category and the profit or loss of the Group as a whole.
Hence, the directors considered that the Group has only one
reportable segment.

The Group’s revenue is derived from external customers located
in Mainland China and most of the non-current assets of the Group
are located in Mainland China.

4.1 Fria B (&)

fird %5 3L 8 25 B8 W] BB B H AR RESLBL &L A T
ZELE) T IRE 25 BRSO B TE S 1 o B e e R B
T IRF 2 B % B T s 48R B 2 0 A T A5 B TH
VR o A [0 B R e B e R S R 2
KA IREA] - AEAL T T R R AR IR B F 2
TEWLT > TSR 22 4 2 R SE B 1S B TE A
12> DRI 2 ) AT 428 il K 7 5t i 5 6% A5
ANE 2 B BOK 6 PR TE R 5 B
) AE T S A R B B A > T 9 )
ANy /N I I = L = e <
F O et o -

42 W¥k - Wb Rl - EWEREN
P e Al 1
At O BT DUAT A I B AR
B SN ACE KL LA RE AL KB AT B (E B
G o it BUA B BF 5 > T i el g A 2
9 2 0 (L BB 2% L RS R o A (B T
R R o i 2 MR T (L e LT
(o] < > I e (s 8 DA K 7 1 ek
7 AT g ] 5

Wik K or 3B E B

7 AR o] A o I R I A O A R
G 8 B A T SE S

AN FPATE R O RO -
LB UR ) B B 3% BT Al 1) BT R 0 R
R I B R 5 U B 53 2 Wi s o0 M R A S T R
MR o UL > R AR L A — 8 AT i
i o

A A 1 Wi A R LT R BE B A ER S
LA S B R T 3 I 7L 8 L P o B R B

2021 2020

SR TR TR

HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt FH T

Licensing fee income FEARE L I A 58,217 5,158
Sales of goods B 47,500 358,763
105,717 363,921
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W & #E& R (4)
(CONTINUED)

The five largest customers accounted for approximately 67% of wE - F- 4+ H=1+—HILFEE  HK
the revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. B AL A Ui 4 #167% c R AL FEF B
Revenue individually generated from the following customers A1 31 78 A T oA i A A 2 B 1 AR 119 10%0:

contributed more than 10% of the total revenue of the Group:

2021 2020
e M=
HK$°000 HK$°000
il T
Customer A #FA 34,699 N/A i )
Customer B #FB 17,573 N/A i )
6 OTHER INCOME 6 At A
2021 2020
I TN S ZERCEAE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 7T THIT
Gross rental income IR NN L 44,281 32,694
Government subsidies (Note) R il B (A ) 1,358 2,903
Interest income FlLE A 921 499
Others oAt 4,460 4,881
51,020 40,977
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2021, government subsidies mainly Wtat . e —FE A T H = A HIEFEE - B
represented financial aids received by the subsidiaries from the domestic S B S5 BB 2 ] 9 K JBE Al Ty IR R B AR
government authorities in Mainland China. HY A B A

BOOEYe B OBE VOB AR A A :%:—ifﬁi&



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 205 3% BB R

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 7 Hibwesi O H) - 38
2021 2020
B S “E R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T # T # 7
Gain on disposal of an asset classified as E B AR &R
held-for-sale (Note) W gk (M aE) 131,657 -
Impairment loss of certain investment properties T HRE Y ¥ 2 BAE R
(Note 15) (Ktzt15) (12,214) (16,376)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and Y - BE Kk
equipment Z (fEi8) /il 4 (1,505) 6,330
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary BB A W) 2 R = (1,330)
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HESGEMEZEE = (336)
Net exchange (loss)/gain RE 58 (B548) i 4 v 4 (833) 548
117,105 (11,164)

N AN TN Tt = AT g
15 A R IERFET 7 T 24 G I ik o PR UL - AR SE
] L1 134,622,0007 JC 19 1€ 18 Hi B e (] 1 [ 74
2,965,000/t 70 19 # B Y (50 K25 15 1F H B2 &
BE) o AU - A< [ [ Al 5F (18 - TF
BH | GR B a2 B 45 131,657,00005 0 - ¥
A7 5 B 19 4 18 R Tt 58 59 I AR 2 B A I 73
26,871,0007 70 X 764,000 {5 C > F[— R ITH

Note: During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered Mt -
into a land resumption agreement with Putian City Licheng District
People’s Government, pursuant to which the Group disposed of an
investment property which was an asset classified as held-for-sale with a
carrying value of HK$2,965,000 at a consideration of HK$134,622,000.
Accordingly, the Group recognised a gain on disposal amounting
to HK$131,657,000 in “other gains/(losses) — net”. The related

compensation to existing tenants and other transaction costs amounting

to HK$26,871,000 and HK$764,000, respectively, were recognised in

“general and administrative expenses”.

8 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging/(crediting) the

35 #ERR -

8 REBEAM (E#H)

B R CFFAGER) A&

following:
2021 2020
e S ZECEAE
HK$°000 HK$’000
T # 5t T
Auditors’ remuneration A% B M <5
— Audit services — 1% B BS 2,127 2,193
— Non-audit services — JE BB B 1,118 391
Compensation to existing tenants in relation to BB A ELE ZERE
disposal of an asset classified as held-for-sale AR BH 1 B A L % E
(Note 7) (Wtit7) 26,871 -
Concessionary fee i 8 697 53,609
Cost of inventories sold, net of provision BT AR (B R EA) 49,723 228,099
Depreciation of investment properties g -CVE LK 21,136 14,297
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W2~ BRE KT 3,052 14,825
Depreciation of right-of-use assets fli FIREE B gy 2,815 18,777
Employee benefits expense (Note 13) 1 B AR A B 3 (Mt 13) 38,541 126,023
Expenses relating to short-term leases and variable 7 [# %5 A #H & #1 v] 25 41 &
lease payments AR BA 32 1,916 10,695
Impairment loss on financial assets A T A L (R 1R 825 37,426
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases #IEME R ) 591 (60)
Written off/impairment loss on value-added tax AT Wi [ 96 (B R 4R U (E
recoverable JiEs 15 6,041 11,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B S 5 ¥ e W R

9 FINANCE COSTS

9 WM¥EA

2021 2020
- R 3 TR TRA
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt T o0
Interest on convertible notes A R S 4,398 912
Interest on lease liabilities mEAEmNE 342 1,412
4,740 2,324
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 Fi 45 B BA X

2021 2020
SR TR TR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T # 0 T 50
Current income tax RIVHA Jor 45 B Bl 16 26,272 1,604

(Over)/under provision in R A
prior years (R ZE M) s A (158) 11
Deferred income tax (Note 30) AR SE T 13 BB IE (M 7E30) 135 341
26,249 1,956

The income tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

RS A BRI BR BT A BT &2 R, (RS 1R) 2 BT A4 B
SEL{R 7 bR ) 7 4 [ 2 ) M B R T O

applicable domestic tax rates of the Group’s entities as follows: ZEEmBLIE Z RN
2021 2020
R TR TR
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T ¥ T 0
Profit/(loss) before income tax B BT 75 B i LA, (5 1) 79,825 (239,769)
Add: share of losses of associates and T R AL Bk A ] M
a joint venture B EEER 26 304
79,851 (239,465)
Income tax (expense)/credit calculated at applicable DA % Hi 7 ] i R 51 H. 2
domestic tax rates FrAg Bt (Gh) (20,110) 51,875
Income not subject to tax JEEBBA 745 7,543
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ] B S (4,828) (8,904)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was e R AL B H R 2
recognised Tt 1 s 15 (7,320) (72,369)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses ) A R TR AR 2 B T s 4R 4,692 20,864
Over/(under) provision in prior years MR AmRE R ) 158 (11)
Withholding taxes on royalties in A v R R [ 1 o R e
Mainland China B (399) (1,212)
Other FHoAty 813 258
Income tax expense T 45 81 B 2 (26,249) (1,956)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

11

12

The weighted average domestic tax rate is 25% (2020: 22%).

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2020:
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have
any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020.

Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on the
statutory tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the assessable income of
each of the Group’s entities incorporated in China.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, 10% withholding
tax is levied on all foreign investors, except that only 5% is levied
for foreign investors which are tax residents incorporated in Hong
Kong, in respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign
investment enterprise’s profit earned after 31 December 2007.
Withholding tax at a reduced rate of 7% (2020: 7%) by treaty is
applied to the Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong for
royalties received or receivable, net with value-added tax.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to shareholders of HK$52,723,000 (2020:
loss of HK$241,987,000) by the weighted average number of
1,814,056,622 (2020: 1,684,738,627) shares in issue during the
year.

The computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 does not assume the
conversion of convertible notes since it would have an anti-
dilutive impact. In addition, share options of the Company were
not dilutive as the exercise price of the options exceeded the
average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 and were excluded in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
Nil).
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T vt R BEAE s fh o
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A 25%) FHA A o

HR A% P B s 2E AT A3 BV > BT I A& 3
ANEARFER FEZLF T A = — H A& T
BUE R 2 BB A IRBIAN 10% 2 FEANBL > e B it
AR S 0 BB R 2 3 2 B ZE A AR
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13

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13 1§ B & A B X
Employee benefits expense, including directors’ emoluments, & B AR A B S (B S E S &) 48 -
represents:
2021 2020
=t S M =t
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# L TH: T
Salaries, allowances and bonuses B4~ HHE RACAD 36,599 63,038
(Reversal)/charge of redundancy costs ERCE TR () FEA
(Note (i) (B 55 G)) (244) 59,278
Defined contribution pension costs (Note (ii)) TE ML FOR R4 AR (I 3EGi)) 2,129 4,376
Charge/(reversal) of share-based payment DA 5y £ R 0 22 A 35 B 3
expense A (FE ) 57 (669)
38,541 126,023
(i) Redundancy costs (i) EBE LA
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised BE_EF-_—HF+A=+—HILEE .
reversal of redundancy costs of approximately HK$244,000 A B T EE SR 8 A R L S AR A AR T
(2020: charge of HK$59,278,000) arising from restructuring A LR AS 138 8] £9244,0000% 0T (ZF
of the business in prior years. As at 31 December 2021, there FAE - 5FAS59,278,000 70) o i —E T —
was no outstanding balance of the redundancy costs provision FEHZA=+t—H WA MKE B
(2020: HK$16,624,000) included in “other payables and B LA (=% ZF4F 1 16,624,0000
accrued charges”. I) B REA T H A FEAT AR BT A
Movements in redundancy provision are as follows: EHUBHS BT -
2021 2020
—F—F TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T
At 1 January w—H—H 16,624 58,139
Exchange adjustment i 53, 38 B 271 1,930
(Credited)/charged to consolidated (), wHA A
income statement i Al as R (244) 59,278
Payment made during the year R E A RIE (16,651) (102,723)
At 31 December Wt —_HA=+—H = 16,624
(ii) Defined contribution pension costs (i) & BB K & A
During the year, no (2020: HK$10,000) unvested RN A SR Sl ) O B A 1) R A DA R
benefits were utilised by the Group to reduce the level of DR (R F AR 10,0008 00) © A
contributions. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was F_ R FZEFET A=+ —H>
no unvested benefits available to be utilised in future years. S 48 SR 2 A B m] ) R I oK B R 25 o

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁim
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13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 13 &

(CONTINUED)
(iii) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals for the year include two
(2020: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 35. The emoluments of the remaining

i

\

{4 A P S (3

(iii) B m A L

FEN - AAREHFANLEERS (CF %
A WI4L) HEE S L o A O B RE3S -
Heg =4 (CF T =4) A2 ME

three (2020: three) individuals are as follows: I
2021 2020
=t e A =
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Salaries, allowances and bonuses Brdr o~ RN AEAD 6,404 1,897
Retirement benefits cost AR AR A A 244 48
Share-based payment expense DL R Ay o B 22 A5 3K B 32 34 -
Redundancy costs B T A - 9,044
6,682 10,989
Number of individuals
AN¥
2021 2020
Emolument bands T 4 1 B ZE AR R A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%5 JG %£1,500,000%5 7C 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 5 7T %.2,500,000%5 JC - 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 #5 7t 3,000,000 G 2 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #5 7T £4,000,000%5 JC - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 JC %£5,000,000% 7C - 1
3 3

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group. No directors or the five
highest paid individuals waived or has agreed to waive any

emolument during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 M3 - W Kkt
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
Buildings ~ improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
frf - HERE
By HEWEEE  RRRRS Rk it it

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Tin Tk Tk Tk Tk Tk

Cost ﬁMﬁ
At 1 January 2020 REFZFE—H—H 196,192 61,922 25,564 23,1712 8,985 515,833
Exchange adjustment et R 15,534 2021 623 15,082 31 33,581
Additions HE - 9 - 6 - 96
Transfer to investment properties wRafEyE (207,351) - - - - (207,351)
Transfer from assets classified as BRANERHELE
held-for-sale VA {:; 19,496 - - 3l 0 19,950
Disposals bk (4.375) (49.352) (24815) (46,024) (7,287) (132,453)
At31 December 2020 R-Z-FE+-H=1-H
and 1 January 2021 k=Z-—F—R—H 19,496 14,681 1,372 191,667 2440 229,658
Exchange adjustment e . kil u5 u 219 3 3314
Additions HE - 1,678 - 1,868 - 3,546
Transfers e - - (1,396) 1,396 - -
Disposals ik - (14,389) - (182,132) (154) (196,675)
At31 December 2021 AZECEF SR 19813 2,185 - 15578 237 39903
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25478 R B {A
At 1 January 2020 REEZFE—H—H 53257 59,742 24,152 203,044 8,375 348,570
Exchange adjustment i 3,397 1,955 593 14450 91 20,686
Depreciation ik 1,736 1,313 620 10,924 232 14,825
Transfer to investment properties BREfENE (53,001) - - - - (53,001)
Transfer from assets classified as HEAMEREELE
held-for-sale LHE 4191 - - 2 381 4,600
Disposals i (4.375) (48,058) (24112) (41,798) (7,055) (125,998)
At31 December 2020 ﬁA*i*ZH: =t-H
and 1 January 2021 ~F-H—H 5,205 14352 1,253 186,648 224 209,682
Exchange adjustment [Eiﬁﬁ 86 208 PA] 1,999 36 2,352
Depreciation it 461 515 - 1957 119 3,052
Transfers ¥ = = (1,276) 1,276 = =
Disposals bk - (14,333) - (179,452) (138) (193,923)
At 31 December 2021 REZZ-EFZA=1-0 5,752 742 - 12428 2,241 21,163
Net book value RS
At31 December 2021 REFZ-EFZA=1-0 14,061 1443 = 3,150 86 18,740
At31 December 2020 REZZFEF A= -8 14291 309 119 5019 218 19976
Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$168,000 (2020: 785 B S £168,00085 7T ( —F 4 1,949,000
HK$1,949,000) and HK$2,884,000 (2020: HK$12,876,000) were 4%75 J%2,884,000% 7T ( —%F " F4F ¢ 12,876,000
charged to selling and distribution expenses and general and 20 Al A B B o3 8 BR S T — M AT
administrative expenses, respectively. E‘Fﬁ i

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁ’z
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 #&EW*E
2021 2020
e S “E R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T # 5t T 7T
Cost IAAE
At 1 January w—H—H 771,079 515,611
Exchange adjustment i 52, W 12,551 41,552
Transfer from property, plant and equipment A AW WRE Kk - 207,351
Transfer from right-of-use assets A G RE A - 23,451
Transfer from/(to) assets classified as i E (2 A RE
held-for-sale 2 39,013 (16,886)
At 31 December wt—H=+—H 822,643 771,079
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BRI SO
At 1 January w—H—H 234,040 145,966
Exchange adjustment [itE b¢, 7 B 4,640 13,708
Transfer from property, plant and equipment A - RSB LA = 53,001
Transfer from right-of-use assets A R A - 4,616
Transfer from/(to) assets classified as i E (2 DM ARE
held-for-sale HE Y ERE 9,425 (13,924)
Depreciation s 21,136 14,297
Impairment Uik (L 12,214 16,376
At 31 December wtr—-H=1—H 281,455 234,040
Net book value R T VR
At 31 December Rr=H=+—H 541,188 537,039
At 1 January w—H—H 537,039 369,645
Investment properties are situated in Mainland China and BB SE AL B R R > S ARSI R AL o
rented out under operating leases. Rental income arising from Ei'd %%%? A= I A 4 A £544,281,00095 IC (=
the investment properties amounting to HK$44,281,000 (2020: T TR 1 32,694,0008 0) o 0 FFA SR AU
HK$32,694,000) is included in “other income” in the consolidated F T H AU AL o BT 4% & Py 2E A0 %ﬁ Z R
income statement. The operating expenses relating to the (ST E) 527, 209 000#5 76 (=& 415
investment properties (including depreciation) amounted to 24 730 000{%75 o YT 8 B ?(321,136,000%313
HK$27,209,000 (2020: HK$24,730,000). Depreciation expenses TR TR 14,297,000 70) FEA — K ATIEL
of approximately HK$21,136,000 (2020: HK$14,297,000) were Fiﬁ e
charged to general and administrative expenses.
As at 31 December 2021, the fair values of the investment WoE - —F+_H=+—H> j’ﬁ ﬁ%% iy
properties were approximately HK$862,037,000 (2020: O V-8 (H 49 £5862,037,0008 7T (& EAE ¢
HK$750,291,000). The fair values of investment properties are of 750,291,000%% JC) &g%ﬁﬁﬁ/\%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ#
a level 3 fair value measurement and were measured using income MBS & A AT R EA T ]

method and market comparable method. ERGEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15 EWE ()

(CONTINUED)

The Group observed that the returns from the lease of certain
investment properties were low and one of the investment
properties was vacant for a substantial period, impairment
assessment was performed for these investment properties. The
recoverable amounts were determined based on fair value less
cost of disposal with reference to the valuations performed by
Shanghai Zhengda Assets Appraisal Company Limited (“Shanghai
Zhengda”), an independent professionally qualified valuer who
holds recognised relevant professional qualifications and has
relevant experience in respect of the investment properties valued.

A A2 (B 48 5 ) R SO B ) e R A
FHp— A Gy ERNZEE > K E s
) FEAEAT T WA FEAG o W ] 4 A LA S
LT T I V=07, NI - o B 301 sl N < § ==
A RAF ([ EWIEKR]D (—FRBILMHEEE
W REAL B - Fr ARl A B SR WA
FRAG 5 W 3 0 R B AC R AR A AR AE o 8
Ub o AR AR R A AR AE BE T Hofhli 25 (5 48) —
A | e RR T U 1R 12,214,000 00 (&
FAE 1 16,376,0004 9C) ©

Accordingly, the Group determined and recognised an impairment
loss of HK$12,214,000 (2020:HK$16,376,000) in “other
gains/(losses) — net” for the current year.

DR 2 174 A B A e A 3ol (D ) 488 6 00 S Al B T
B Al (5 i R o 2 A (B A 2

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques and the key
inputs used in the valuation of the investment properties with
impairments in Mainland China:

Range of
Class of properties Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs unobservable inputs
A W B A
ESE il 1L 3 fi EONITRNE E- 3L PN ¥ i 17
Industrial properties Income method Growth rate 2%
T M WA HRx
Discount rate 5.5%
It B
Expected market monthly rent 7.2
(RMB/square meter/month)
T S A &
(NR¥SFIAKH)
Commercial properties Market comparable method Expected unit market price 15,000-43,486
[HEZ/E 3 iR ik (RMB/square meter)
TEH T 5 B
(NER¥ESF07 k)

T A 1 i N BN - (P R

Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value:

e The higher the growth rate, the higher the fair value; o WRERME AFEMEMS

3 The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value; . P BR RG N TAE (E A

. The higher the expected market rent, the higher the fair value; and . AT S ks o AP REENS 5 &

. The higher the expected unit market price, the higher the fair ° TECHA T By B (B S B s > AT A o
value.

REOOE UE B OBR SRR AR A :?:*@@ﬁ’z



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16 LEASES 16 fl&
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a A B B AL R A A AR [ R 2y AR AR R R BT R o
lessee.
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () NETEEABERERN &
sheet
2021 2020
ot Jae TR TR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T 0 T
Right-of-use assets: i I REE E -
Land use rights o Hb A A RE 6,797 6,744
Buildings == 6,726 2,342
13,523 9,086
During the year, additions to the right-of-use assets were AETR s 1 RE B N 458,977,000 0T (—F
HK$8,977,000 (2020: Nil). T ) o
2021 2020
e
HK$°000 HK$°000
T 0 T
Lease liabilities: LR & i
Current T 3,107 2,988
Non-current FE L E) 4,301 -
7,408 2,988
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

16 HlH (#])
(i) 7% 5 A B A £ 184 W 1 2

2021 2020

=t S M =t

HK$°000 HK$°000

T# L TH: T

Depreciation of right-of-use assets i R 2,815 18,777
Interest on lease liabilities GER=¢=R ¥ 1IP5) 342 1,412

Expense relating to short-term leases and variable 7 B % B FH & 1 ] 5

lease payments FH A 3 BH 3 1,916 10,695
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases AL ERE, (i) 591 (60)

During the year, the Group exercised its termination options
on certain leases, resulting in a loss of HK$591,000 (2020:
gain of HK$60,000).

The total cash outflow for leases during the year was
HK$5,476,000 (2020: HK$24,773,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted
for the Group leases various offices and warehouses.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
approximately 2 to 3 years (2020: 2 to 6 years).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

R AL AT A TR AR R
HE > EAREIES591,000% 00 (T F B4R Y
£60,000%5 JC) ©

(i) RN HHEBENELSRE AR5
5,476,00045 J6 (ZF ZFAF © 24,773,000
JB) °

(iv) AAEE WM EEE &L anhE A% EH
L A M A o FlE A R w2
M HMEZFAE (CE_EF WE
NEE) o

LS00 R M TE 5 THA B A R B AT
R o 3l BB AN [ A R A o

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁ’z
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17 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17 AW A b Z BE 4

2021 2020

—F—F e 2

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt T #E T

At 1 January w—H—H 1,036 1,481
Exchange adjustment E 58, 38 190 (405)
Share of losses JRE A 5 15 (26) (40)

At 31 December Ht+—A=+—H 1,200 1,036

N oE - —FE+H=+—H BEAFZE

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

m Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2021

THF
Place of
incorporation Particulars of Interests held
Name and operation paid-up capital indirectly  Principal activities
£ H Al T B 2% A S B O 4% R I AR o 1 Pide s FEER
Hanjiang Dayong Shoe Material Co., China RMBS5,457,000 30%  Manufacture of shoe
Ltd., Putian City ] 5,457,00000 A R # materials
B VLK A TR F R ) R
Hanjiang Jinxing Shoe Industrial China US$4,900,000 30% Manufacture of
Co., Ltd., Putian City el 4,900,000 7t footwear products
L R R A IR A ] B B
18 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18 N HEMEFEZ ML
2021 2020
B S “EFEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # 50 T
At 1 January w—H—H - 1,002
Exchange adjustment T b, ] - (98)
Share of loss JRE A 5 15 - (264)
Disposal ke - (640)
At 31 December Wt H=+—H - -
Details of the joint venture as at 31 December 2021 are as follows: WR_FE T HA=ZT—H GE0EZH
THWF
Place of
incorporation and Particulars of Interest held
Name operation paid-up capital indirectly Principal activities
4 H ik 3L, I S O 4% R I AR i 1 Pii s REER
Marlow House Asia Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 shares of 50% Investment holding
Malaysia US$1 each &R
R LR 2 B T {E
J& A& 7Y 5 13670 2 e fiy
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19 INVENTORIES 19 #8
2021 2020
B S “ECFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T # 5t T
Finished goods B - 41,569
Inventories as at 31 December 2020 were stated net of provisions ATFEZRET A=+ —H s FERTIENER
of HK$83,083,000. 11£4#583,083,000 7T 1% 51 i -
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended BE_ZF-—F+-HA=1+—H ﬂ:fliE > TERR
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$49,723,000 (2020: bz Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%%@ 723 0007 7T (& ~F 4
HK$228,099,000). These were included in cost of sales. 228,099,000 7C) > B G FE B E R A o
The Group wrote off HK$84,435,000 of a previous inventory P 7 A B [ R B (LR T O A R
write-down, as the Group sold the relevant goods that had been KEEMB L RER » LB T A7 &
written down to independent retailers in Mainland China. i E184,435,0004% JC ©
20 TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 B o M WOR K
2021 2020
e S S S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T THE T
Trade receivables 5 MR K 26,470 49,435
Loss allowance (Note 3.1(iii)) T TE 3 A4 (BEE 3.1l (18,817) (25,184)
Trade receivables — net F o MEWIR 3K — 134 7,653 24,251
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as P HAFH I 2 & o) EOIR R S 7 A n
follows:
2021 2020
R4 R R
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# L TH: T
0 - 30 days 0 230H 7,415 12,124
31 - 60 days 31 260H 238 5,368
61 —90 days 61 £290H - 3,551
91 - 180 days 91 £180H 1,558 814
181 — 360 days 181 2360H 1,711 1,372
Over 360 days 360H DL 15,548 26,206
26,470 49,435

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁ’z
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, net of loss allowance,

are denominated in the following currencies:

20 ¥ 5 FEWOIR Ak (48)

B oy W WSO T A MR TR (B e 4R 4804 L 97
BWEHE

2021 2020
SEROE CECRF
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T # 7T
RMB N 7,653 21,612
US$ e - 2,639
7,653 24,251
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates its fair JRE o R A i R T (BRSPS - R

values. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group generally
allowed a credit period of 0 to 30 days to its trade customers.

SR A= RIREE S AR
flesa T E 5 & P 030K IAE M

21 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21 Ffth FE WM K ~ 2 & I TR A K IR
PREPAYMENTS
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments mainly S At R S B K~ 4% 4 B TE AN AR T AL ATl
comprise value-added tax recoverable, net of impairment, of ] 38 (R B 8 (FIBR IR 23,761,000% 7T (% —
HK$23,761,000 (2020: HK$36,186,000). The carrying value of FEAE 1 36,186,0000% 7)o HoAh B U IR K - HE &
other receivables, deposits and prepayments approximates its fair i TEAR R IH 2 W T B LA P AE (E AR A o
value.
22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22 BEkBlE&FEY
2021 2020
=t S At = 2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T-# 0 T # 7T
Cash at banks and in hand SRATHE R X TS & 227,489 124,567

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are

denominated in the following currencies:

Bl R Bl &5 Y < IRHE LT 5 B B EHE

2021 2020
R e

HK$°000 HK$’000

T# 0 T T

HK$ 5T 49,656 58,827
RMB PN 167,245 54,591
US$ B 10,588 6,168
NTD EeR=kin = 4,981
227,489 124,567
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22

23

24

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and
remittance of RMB out of Mainland China is subject to the
rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated by the
government of Mainland China.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

The following non-current assets were classified as held-for-sale:

22 BekB&%EY (8)

N B WEAS AT B T 3 St o N R
B I W L R v o R [P 20 A2+ I8 R A A 2
B R B A R B B ik L BR )

23 BB RFAENEZEE
DA 9680 W 4060 o A e

2021 2020
- a2 S
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T # 7T

Assets classified as held-for-sale: PRSI B2 B -
Right-of-use assets i P HE = 3,128
Property, plant and equipment W WE A = 25,987
Investment properties il L7/ S = 2,962
- 32,077

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed an
asset held-for-sale with carrying values of HK$2,965,000 (Note
7). The Group also reclassified remaining assets held-for-sale
with carrying values of HK$29,588,000 to investment properties
as the negotiations or proposed transactions were terminated
and the Group had not located any appropriate potential buyer.
Accordingly, the Group did not foresee the assets would be
disposed in the next twelve months and reclassified to investment
properties.

ﬁﬁ:i:—@+:ﬁ3+—ﬁi$§:$%
f’?ﬁ?hﬁﬁ@é?‘ > JE T {H 452,965,000

JC (BfFRET) o 29 82 BN 53T 0 S H5 A 15 B 10 el i
ﬁ?*&fé%% Eﬁﬁfi’“fﬁ%zasss,ooop%fn T4
P ik ) B B o 58 2 L i A A NI ) R A
B TEAEE R o KL - 7 4 [N R 7H WL 5% A
AR R AW H A IR S
L E

TRADE PAYABLES 24 ¥ 5 BEAF sk H
The carrying amount of trade payables is considered to be the same H A H A IV R B2 ) AN Ak I A IR T (A A
as its fair value, due to its short term in nature. The ageing analysis B IR A PE (AR o R 85 58 H 30 Y e iR 30
of trade payables based on invoice date is as follows: HRES X AT R an R -
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$ OOO
T# 0 T # 7
0-30 days 0%30H 1,087 4,730
31 -60 days 31260H 368 6,233
61 —90 days 61290 H - 11,388
91 — 180 days 91 %180 H 12 16,875
181 — 360 days 1814360 H - 23,080
Over 360 days 360H LA 2,640 6,895
4,107 69,201

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁim
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25 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

CHARGES

25

Other payables and accrued charges mainly comprise deposits
received from franchisees and tenants of HK$19,185,000
(2020: HK$32,754,000), accrued employee benefits expense of
HK$7,236,000 (2020: HK$9,120,000), receipt-in-advance in
relation to rental income of HK$5,146,000 (2020: HK$8,745,000)
and compensation payable to tenants in relation to land resumption
of HK$3,289,000 (2020: Nil). The carrying amount of other
payables and accrued charges is considered to be the same as its

fair value, due to its short term in nature.

Al JE A5k e sk K WE Wt 2 R

At MR AS R R B R T P B A o B v R
FH 5 W BUAY 4% 4:$19,185,0009 J0 (& 4 ¢
32,754,000% 0) ~ MEFHE B 48 Fl B 527,236,000
W0 (& A 19,120,000 70) - T 4
A FKTES, 146,000 7T (% —F4E 1 8,745,000
W0 KA B b T RE AN AR 60 B 1 4
3,289,000 70 (& " RAF 1 M) o it K2
WVERE o At AT R R B RE ST 2 R v (B
HAFREEAAHEE -

26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 AR
2021 2020
=% “Em%E
Number of Number of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 of HK$0.10
each HK$°000 each HK$°000
T T4 o i T
0.10¥ 0 Z 0.10¥ 02
8 I % H Tt 3 R E T
Authorised: A
At 1 January and H—H—H X
31 December +—-H=1+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RBE -
At 1 January w—H—H 1,814,056,622 181,406 1,649,142,384 164,914
Issue of new shares AT AR - - 164,914,238 16,492
At 31 December T+ H=+—H 1,814,056,622 181,406 1,814,056,622 181,406
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(i) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions @)
The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was approved by
shareholders of the Company and adopted by the Company
on 27 August 2013. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.

The share options are generally valid for a period of ten
years and will lapse if the grantees leave the Group before
the share options are exercisable. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share
options in cash.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and
their weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

27 VA 25 B BE 2 AF sk 22 5

VAR 45 %5 5 VLR Ay 2 26 B 2 1F ik 52 5%
AR =N ER AR AR
O 3B ) (TRt 30 )) S A 28 7 4R
Ao BRBCBOH BUE SRS > w3 R A A
WP HERE 4 A 3K

S AT 20— M 4 T ik R TR
U IS HE T AT o IS PR AT B A A
HERD 5 2R 28 o 74 310 40 05 o B ffE o TR AT
DA < M (1] 55 45 5 B

ARAT o 2 i PO HE S ) o L o RT3 77 {1
ZEEBHWE

2021 2020
. e
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options
TR F- 35 ikt S
R WBREBA I FERCRERH
HK$ HK$
# U T
At 1 January W—H—H 0.76 12,180,000 2.79 24,380,000
Granted (Note) e (HrFt) 0.20 121,300,000 - -
Lapsed [N 1.07 (830,000) 4.82  (12,200,000)
At 31 December Bt+=A=+—H 0.25 132,650,000 0.76 12,180,000
Exercisable at 31 December 1+~ H =+ —H [ {74 0.73 11,350,000 0.76 12,180,000
Note: Wit :

Out of the total number of options granted during the year, 51,800,000
share options were granted to Mr. Wang Jungang, an executive director
of the Company, which is subject to the approval of independent
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁ’z

A A2 B TR FE AR 51,800,000 s I FETE
FETARL BT EF T B - TR
T 3 R A A b AL T AT EE o
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 27 Ik BRBEZ AR5 ()

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(i) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions @) l«l BEREEURD AEEZ MRS
(Continued) 7H5)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the T—EX W ARAT (5 2 W TR RE 1 0 B B AT il
EaF

following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Exercise Price Number of share options

A7 1 Jilh It BE 5 H

Grant date Expiry date HK$ 2021 2020
A F WA s R CER TR
21 January 2014 20 January 2024 4.50 100,000 180,000
X —ME—H=+—H X TMNE—H=+—H
25 January 2017 24 January 2027 0.70 11,250,000 12,000,000
—E—tH—HAZ+HH —ECEFE A TIH
14 December 2021 13 December 2031 0.20 121,300,000 -
SR —FT AT A —EF=—F+ZH+=H

132,650,000 12,180,000
Weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at year end (years)
AR AR RAT O8I P 00 o - 38 R 8 £ R R B (4F) 9.54 6.02

(a) Fair value of options granted

The assessed fair value at grant date of options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was HK$0.06
per option. The fair value at grant date is independently

determined using Binomial Option Pricing Model that

takes into account the exercise price, the term of the

option, the share price at grant date and expected price

volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend

yield, the risk free interest rate for the same term of the

option.

The model inputs for options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2021 included:

Exercise price:
Grant date:
Expiry date:

Share price at grant date:
Expected price volatility:
Expected dividend yield:

Risk-free interest rate:

HK$0.20

14 December 2021
13 December 2031
HK$0.154

56.39%

0.94%

1.48%

The expected prices volatility is based on the historic
volatility based on the share price of the Company.
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(a)

% 7 il I WE 0 2 P B

BEF-—-FTH=ZT—HIF
FEFZ 0 O RO A 4 B B BEAG A
PEAE 2 B 03 T B #E0.06%5 IT » 2 T

RS 23 P fif 1 BT — 0 o0 T
R Y 8 ST e S > R AR BN S B T AT A

{6~ SUHERARR ~ 427 1 A0 AR BRI
PSS T MR D) LA B i
2~ BB HERA AR ] 19 AU 6 -

BE - Z -+ A=+—HI*
BE P2 B 30 RE A B T iy A RS

T - 0203 ¢
BiE SR T A TA
FMH SRt AT =H
BT H R 0.154% ¢
TR E S e By - 56.39%
TR Bl R 0.94%
A0 o A1) 2% 1.48%
TEHA A D By 2 i AR A R (B A

R S T E
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment transactions
The Company has granted share appreciation rights
(“SARs”) to certain directors of the Company and certain
employees of the Group. SARs are granted in units with each
unit representing one ordinary share of the Company.

Movements in the number of SARs outstanding during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

27 DA A 2 BB 2 Ak 22 5y (4)

(i) VABE < &5 5 DUJBe O 2 Bk B 2 Aok sk 52 5
RO T AN F AT AR TR
B B 8 (R ([t S (EAE D) B
WEEZ L MR ARAL R —

A I AR o

BE-ZE - —ER-F FE+ A
S b FRAEBE R AT R

BHZBIT
Number of SARs
J oy He L RE S H
2021 2020
- by R
At 1 January w—H—H 1,450,000 16,500,000
Lapsed BN (1,450,000) (15,050,000)
At 31 December Wt _HA=+—H = 1,450,000

During the year, the credit recognised in relation to the SARs
was HK$153,000 (2020: HK$669,000).

AR AL Al B4 134 R R T B 153,000 I
(T T FAE 1 669,0000 90) o

BOOEYe B OBE VOB AR A A :%:—ifﬁiﬁ
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28 RESERVES

28 fili f

Retained
Convertible ~ Share-ased ~ Currency profits/
Share Capital Merger  notes capital payment  translation  Statutory  (accumulated
premium Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserves losses) Total
ThREE DRHBER BN/
RbEE  BARE  ABRE  EREE  NIRE ERRE  BERE (RHER) it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000
T T T#T T T T#T Th Tt Tt
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c))
(Witw)  (Wik) (k)
At January 2000 RFZFE--A 120281 2685 m - B 035 muT BeI s
Currency translation differences: EiEg
Group KER - - - - - 41,552 - - 41,532
Associaes and a joint venture BENARAELE - - - - - (509) - - (509)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAA - - - - - (3452) - 345 -
Loss for the year e - - - - - - SAN) a9
Write back of unclaimed dividends BAKENEE - - - - - - - ) 4
Issue of new shares Bk 13473 - - - - - - - 13473
Issue of convertible notes EimikiEs = - - 6,450 - - - - 0450
Share aption scheme: BRE
Transfer upon lapse of share options RERER AR - - - - (2L134) - - 134 -
At31 December 2020 REFZEEFZJ=4-H
and | Janvary 2021 RhZEZ-F-f-H 133,754 2689 m 6430 2293 106912 173,007 (78.399) 36824
Currency translation differences: Eizg:
Group KER - - - - - 8,099 - - 8,099
Associates and a joint venture NN G % - - - - - 19 - - 19
Dissolutionofsubsidares REmELA - U - - - 117 (L% 167 -
Profit or the year Engl - - - - - - - 27 27
Share option scheme: Bl
Value of grantee srvices KE RN - - - - 20 - - - 20
Transfer upon lapse of share opions RERERARES - - - - (367 - - 37 -
At31 December 2021 e St 5 B 133,754 2,88 m 6450 1,136 116971 171473 (25,342) 408,646

Notes: W RE -

(a) The capital reserve mainly represents the nominal amount of shares (a)  JBAGHEME T B AR A T — JUIUIUAR W ] R 2 T
repurchased by the Company in 1999. 18 -

(b) The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate (b) A DF kA i BEHJBG 2 R A AR 2 m WO R H 2 I A T
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on B AR BELAS A R AR 98 — JU L L AFE 2 W) 5 AR 2 WOk
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the AR T B AT B A T (L A 2 22 o
share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition
pursuant to the corporate reorganisation in 1995.

(c) As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s (c) AR v I R e v > AR A ) vl A o T B

subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required
to appropriate minimum 10% of their after-tax profit to the statutory
reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares,
whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the development
of business operations. When the statutory reserves reach an amount equal
to 50% of the registered capital of the Company’s subsidiaries, further
appropriation is optional.
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Z W O R AR L BLAR M 2 2 D 109888 A i SE fik
i P A 2 gE RS A - 3K LLAG) dy B RG24 W 4% B 2
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B o T E (M B AR 2 m I 2 R RE M E AR S50%
& > A EEER NP K o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 7 S 255 3% B RE

29 CONVERTIBLE NOTES 29 W[ HBE 27
On 14 October 2020, pursuant to a subscription agreement dated MoFEZFELH A *E}% S 7 e S —"

14 September 2020 (the “Subscription Agreement”), the
Company issued unlisted and unsecured RMB denominated, HK$
settled convertible notes due in 2023 in an aggregate principal
amount of RMB25,300,000, equivalent to HK$28,633,000.

The terms of the convertible notes are summarised below:

LA A 2R (TR > AR
A B AT UAE%#ﬁIu%mm%z_E::
EEIIE LT MR AT R S AR BB
A R #25,300,0007C » #H & 7228,633,00045 IC

T 0 B S e B A B T

(a) the convertible notes bear interest of 9.0% per annum on the (a) A HR A 5 44 R B [ AR 4 B 5 4F R 2R 9.0
outstanding principal amount and the interest will be payable AR FEMR ZFE=41TH T UHE
upon redemption on 14 October 2023 or convertible into 5] BRF S ASE > AT A o 4 T 46 % £ S IR i
shares upon conversion of the convertible notes; B

(b) the convertible notes are convertible at the option of the (b) Aok EHRBEFRETHRRE X =
holder into fully paid ordinary shares on or after the issue A HMHE IR TS REA A
date of the convertible notes up to 14 October 2023 at 7R 5 i A A 0,22 135 T AR 2 A2
a conversion price of HK$0.221 per share, with fixed JBE K A i o [ B 28 A 1S o b N R
exchange rate at HK$1 = RMBO0.8836 and subject to certain 0.88367T - Mk 78 L 465 58 W% 1o ok Ik OB AT A
adjustments pursuant to the terms of the Subscription T
Agreement;

(c) the convertible notes will be redeemed on maturity at a value (c) TG B AE 5519 1 ) HA IRE 42 AR 25 172 1009 A< JE
equal to the HKD equivalent of the aggregate of 100% of the I B M A < B o 4 8 B ok T AR 2

outstanding RMB principal amount and all amounts accrued
thereon.

At the issuance of the convertible notes, a liability component
representing the 3-year 9.0% straight debt and an equity
component representing the convertible option of HK$0.221 per
share were recognised at fair value.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying value of the liability
component of the convertible notes approximated its fair value.

T (R ) o

BEAT O R A SR R AUREE S (RIH%9.00H 5T S
2 ZEMMETE) MR R B (BDEER%0. 221 T 22
W B RE) T4 T E R o

AR A= H TR E A
TR o 2 W T (E SR NP E A - Tiﬁéﬂxﬁf

Movements of the liability component of the convertible notes KZ2BEBEHIIEE T —F R R R
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: TZA=t—HIEFEEZEHWOT

2021 2020
RO TECELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
At 1 January w—H—H 24,571 -
Principal amount issued [ NE - 22,183
Exchange adjustment e 53, 37 B 408 1,476
Accretion of interest ]S 8 H 4,398 912
At 31 December mrt—_HA=+—H 29,377 24,571

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of the
convertible notes was redeemed or converted.

OO UEBWOBR v R AR

JJ:fle T@TﬁiT?ﬁ%ﬂxﬁ#’ﬂiﬁf@Jﬁﬁﬁ%

N

REPT 105
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under
the liability method using the applicable tax rates.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, deferred
income tax liabilities represent solely accelerated tax depreciation.
Movements in deferred income tax liabilities (prior to offsetting of

3 % It 15 B¢ JH

0 A P15 B TELR B Ak ol B 2 R R T B
HEHE -

WE_F R FFEL A= H
1R 4FBE > R A i 45 B TE AR 1QR I B B TE 3
B o IEIEBUTE B AR (FE R — OB w) vk HE I 2 45 B

balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) are as follows:

HES AT Z BB AR -

2021 2020
RO TECELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
At 1 January w—H—H 4,540 2,688
Exchange adjustment e 53, 37 B 74 333
Charged to consolidated income statement ARGl R 135 341
Transfer from disposal group classified WA R AR L
as held-for-sale 2 B A - 1,178
At 31 December mt—_HA=+—H 4,749 4,540
The expiry of unrecognised tax losses as at 31 December 2021 are W oE o —FE+ A=+ —H > KRR IEE
as follows: B EmE R
2021 2020
Bk Sl 2 S S22
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T #E T
Tax losses expiring in 5 years A TR T i 2 B TE e 4R 2,137,394 3,375,936
Tax losses without expiry date e = H A 2 B IE e 4R 70,989 69,040
2,208,383 3,444,976
As at 31 December 2021, the potential deferred income tax assets WoE T+ A=+ —H o Bl R ER
in respect of the above unrecognised tax losses amounted to 4 2 s $5 A E%Z(%fLLFﬁ 5 TFUE A A S

HK$546,062,000 (2020: HK$855,376,000).

546,062,000 7T (

Jo) °

TF AR 855,376,000

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$1,057,000 (2020:
HK$1,336,000), in respect of unremitted earnings of
approximately HK$13,073,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$18,308,000), have not been recognised for the withholding tax
as the Group controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and
has no plan for dividend remittance in foreseeable future.
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A A [ A e A T B RS A R A R M R R 2 R AN
?E?umlosmoo«%m (ZF A 11,336,000

JC) WEFRIR AL I 15 B TE B A1 > R /o AN 4R [ 4 ol 3%
#W%Ajz}ﬂxuﬁlﬁ H 5 E 7w A
RIEHBE - R —F_—F+_H=1+—H>
o BB H 2 R &) £513,073,0000 0 (T & “FAE
18,308,000%5 7C) °
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31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 31 BlemEFR
(i) Cash used in operations () BHEFAHZHS
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to cash used in (a) SBERBA (E18) B8 E T 2 BE
operations is as follows: ZEIRIT -
2021 2020
e S .
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# L TH: T
Profit/(loss) before income tax ik i 19 B AT Wi i (s 182) 79,825 (239,769)
Adjustments for: VEH %% .
Depreciation of investment properties gL E g 21,136 14,297
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WE I
equipment g 3,052 14,825
Depreciation of right-of-use assets R 2,815 18,777
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary th B B )8 2 B s 1R - 1,330
Loss on disposal of joint venture LS EMEER - 336
Impairment loss of certain investment A THRE Y ERE
properties i 48 12,214 16,376
Impairment loss on financial assets xRl A Rl M s 1R 825 37,426
Written off/impairment loss on value- AT [ 3 (BB R R,
added tax recoverable (E R 1R 6,041 11,323
Gain on disposal of an asset classified as 8 7088 2 R4 B
held-for-sale ZERE 2 (131,657) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant H &%) ~ 5 & 5%
and equipment K51, (W d) 1,505 (6,330)
Loss/(gain) on termination of leases KR R (e ss) 591 (60)
Share of losses of associates and JEAG W8 A R G BN
a joint venture Z A 26 304
Finance costs RS LA 4,740 2,324
Interest income Fl Bl A (921) (499)
Share-based payment DR A0y 70 B 2 A5F Kk
expense/(credit) B (K 5) 210 (669)
Operating cash flows before working S G REEI
capital changes WEH R e 402 (130,009)
Decrease in inventories 17 & WD 42,246 123,794
Decrease in trade receivables, other H 5 FENC AR R~ HoAth BEUS R 2K~
receivables, deposits and prepayments 2 & B BN SR D 53,401 96,514
Decrease in trade payables, B 5 REAT IR - HoAth
other payables, accrued charges and JEAST R K - METT 2 &
contract liabilities AR ABW D (122,488) (211,547)
Cash used in operations T 2 B4 (26,439) (121,248)

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@@ﬁ’z



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 0 55 i R I

31 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

31 &R EE R (4)

(CONTINUED)
(i) Cash used in operations (Continued) i) BHEFHAZHS ()

(b) In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from (b)) NEEHERERAN HEWE - MK
disposal of property, plant and equipment and an asset bﬁ?& S B I FEAE 2
classified as held-for-sale can be reconciled as follows: PO ER R

2021 2020
RO ZERCRLE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T #E T
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - R K&
plant and equipment and an asset % B o K A AR AR
classified as held-for-sale & 2 B IR 135,869 16,685
Net book amount W T I E
— Property, plant and equipment — W B KE A
(Note 14) (Pt 5E14) (2,752) (6,455)
— Assets classified as — B TFEE R &
held-for-sale ZHEE (2,965) (3,900)
Gain on disposal of an asset classified as held-  Hi & B 708 & 75 F H &
for-sale and property, plant and equipment ZERE R W
(Note 7) B i i (B 3E7) 130,152 6,330
(ii) Net debt reconciliation (i) BEHBEHFHZHIE
This section sets out an analysis and the movements of net A S AT R R 2 o AT K )
debt.
Cash and
Lease Convertible cash
liabilities notes equivalents Total
ek
MEakK  TEREE  HE%ED it
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T Tt
At 1 January 2020 NEZRE——H (46,090) - 182,293 136,203
Cash flows RahiE 14,078 (28,633) (64,148) (78,703)
Non-cash movement EBlaEH)
— Early termination of leases - RERERE 31,330 - - 31,330
— Equity component of — W RERZ
convertible notes 4 37 - 6,450 - 6,450
— Interest of lease liabilities - HEARKRHE (1,412) - - (1,412)
— Imputed interest of convertible notes  — A 4 Bt & % i B A1 &1 - (912) - 912)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  FE % 58 (894) (1,476) 6,422 4,052
At 31 December 2020 REFZFEF A=+ —HR
and 1 January 2021 R —%—-A—H (2,988) (24,571) 124,567 97,008
Cash flows Baiig 3,560 - 100,902 104,462
Non-cash movement EBeEE)
- Additions — H (8,977) - - (8,977)
— Early termination of leases - RELLHE 1,392 = = 1,392
— Interest of lease liabilities - HEAEMNE (342) - - (342)
— Imputed interest of convertible notes ~ — [ 4 [t 5 % ff S & i (4,398) - (4,398)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ % 52 8} it (53) (408) 2,020 1,559
At 31 December 2021 REFZ—F+ZA=F—H (7,408) (29,377) 227,489 190,704
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32 COMMITMENTS

Non-cancellable operating leases
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating

32 K

A T 30 B0 4 2 LR
BB S LB LT LR - LS
TR St L eSO R

leases with rental payments every 3-12 months.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment

properties are as follows:

i AH B W) 3 2 B AR AT O e A N

2021 2020
SESE U EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Within 1 year —4E N 40,410 29,327
Between 1 and 2 years —F AR 43,673 34,273
Between 2 and 3 years TR 39,118 32,912
Between 3 and 4 years ZFE AR 36,976 29,213
Between 4 and 5 years PO % H AR 15,941 27,460
Later than 5 years AR 16,903 7,369
193,021 160,554
33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 33 &M T HH
CATEGORY
2021 2020
e =
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Financial assets at amortised cost: LIRS AR G 2 1 2 B E
Trade receivables B 5 BECHR K 7,653 24,251
Other receivables and deposits excluding non- At B A R K
financial assets (NEIEIE S REE) 2,106 31,528
Cash and cash equivalents BE RSB 227,489 124,567
Total Gt 237,248 180,346
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: LI G AN 58 1 2 B -
Trade payables B T MEAT R 4,107 69,201
Other payables and accrued charges excluding Al AT R % R
non-financial liabilities (H1 B F e il & ) 45,262 55,108
Lease liabilities HEHAM 7,408 2,988
Convertible notes CEdid e 29,377 24,571
Total Gt 86,154 151,868

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁ%’z
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

(i) Transaction with a related company

The Group did not have any related party transactions during
the year (2020: Nil).

(ii) Year-end balance with a related company

34 BRI 5 B A R

() HBABEAFZE S

AL A AR A AT BRI 7 22 o (&
TAE ) -

(ii) 52 3R 0B 2 W] 2 AR K & B

2021 2020

SR [ Sage 2

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T T

Trade receivable from a joint venture BEMNEE G REICKIE - 2,639

Trade receivable from a joint venture arose mainly from the
sales of goods. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable according to the trade terms.

(iii) Key management personnel compensation
Remunerations for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid/payable to the directors of the
Company, are as follows:

AR b MO A 5 R A E
B e BREE AR - B MR 5 R
fH % -

(i) FEEHABZH M
ASEE EEAE A B 2 (B E A
IARNFEH ZFHIA) F -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Tt TH T

Salaries, allowances and bonuses B AR RAEAL 8,627 6,187
Retirement benefits cost AR AR B A 27 -
Share-based payment expense DA A5 27 FHE B 2 AN R B 3 68 -
8,722 6,187
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 35 HP A 55 M HE 4R

DIRECTORS

(i) Emoluments of the directors and chief executive (i)

R RATBAR ([T 2 &

officer (“CEO”)

Share-based
Salaries and Retirement payment
Fees allowance benefits cost expense Total
ek BIREA DR R 2B
kS H WA ZREREX Hst
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Ti#n Ti#n Ti#x Tin Ti#n
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(W7 (a) (W7Em)
For the year ended BEZZ- %420
31 December 2021 SRR
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman) RENTE (L) - 4,303 = 34 4339
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao (CEO) REGLE (THER) - 3,516 = 34 3,550
Mr. Wang Jungang FREE - 85 27 - 112
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai pilpi 150 = = - 150
The late Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng BRI
(Note (¢)) (k) 75 - - - 75
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence BIMHIEE 396 - - - 396
Mr. Tan Philip (Note (d)) BB (M) 100 = = = 100
721 7,906 27 68 8,722
For the year ended BEZFZZELCA
31 December 2020 =T—HIEFE
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman) REIEE () - 3,190 - - 3,190
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao (CEO) REELE (THER) - 2,074 - - 2,074
Mr. Wang Jungang TRAEE - - - - -
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Bt B - 21 - - 27
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai HIER e 150 - - - 150
The late Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng DR 150 - - - 150
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence AR 396 - - - 396
696 5491 - - 6,187
Notes: B 5E
(a) The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company (a) AT BB AT AR 2 W) HE 2 2 I 4 T AR R 1 5 )

were in respect of their respective services as a director of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

A ) I R ) i AR A ] R o

(b) The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company (b) T EURE A A ) S 2 T TSR SR 4 4
were in respect of directors’ other services in connection with B HLAR > ) B B A 2 S I 40 1 LA
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary i s
undertakings.

(¢)  Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng passed away on 7 July 2021. () EBEREECH_F_—FLA LA

(d)  Mr. Tan Philip has been appointed as an independent non-executive (d)  BRRMIeAER TR —F N AR

director of the Company on 2 August 2021.

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁﬁ’z
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(ii) Termination benefits of directors, and consideration
provided to third parties for making available
directors’ services
For each of the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
termination benefit was paid or payable to any director of the
Company. No consideration was paid or payable to any third
party for making available any director’s services.

(iii) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, no loan, quasi-loan or
other dealing was entered into by the Company or any of
its subsidiary undertakings in favour of any director of the
Company, any controlled body corporate by or connected
entity with any director of the Company.

(iv) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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(ii)
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 36 AN HE E AR M G5 E)

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(i) Balance sheet of the Company (i) AruEEAMGBE
As at 31 December
H+_H=4+—H
2021 2020
R TR TR
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 0 T o0
Non-current assets IE R By & s
Investments in subsidiaries R E AR 2 E 368,822 368,822
Amount due from a subsidiary JRRE AT B A D MR K 109,137 106,690
B 477959 475,512
Current assets I B
Prepayments TE AT FIH 99 99
Cash and cash equivalents Bl B EY 27,412 54,181
27,511 54,280
Current liabilities i B £
___ Other payables and accrued charges S AR R e 824 2,092
_Netcurrentassets  w8wE 26687 52,188
Total assets less current liabilities HUE S U O B A 504,646 527,700
Equity HE £
Share capital lil&S 181,406 181,406
Reserves bt 293,863 321,723
Total equity HERE 475,269 503,129
Non-current liabilities Ik I B £ ]
___Convertiblenotes gE 2983 24,571
Total equity and non-current liabilities HARE £ T I U B 504,646 527,700

Approved by the board of directors on 24 March 2022. CEERGR R F =0+ H it

UE -
CHANG CHIH-KAI CHANG CHIH-CHIAO
RS R
Director Director
HF E5H
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT 36 ARXvHEEAMBRLGHHEE (M)
OF RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(ii) Movement of reserves of the Company (ii) A< 2> W) fif fhi 5% B

Convertible  Share-based ~ Currency
Share Capital ~ Contributed notescapital ~ payment franslation  Retained

premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Wb
TR #R

Rkl BARE  AARR O EARE  MEEE  EXRE  REEA it
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tt TEx TEx FEx TEx Ti#x TEx T#x
(Note 28(a))  (Note (a))
(Hama) (K

At Tanuary 2020 REFZFE-A-H 120281 20 158 S BAT O @s) BB I8N
Currency translation differences EiEE - - - - - 27,136 - 27,136
Loss for the year EREH - - - - - A L I A )
Write back of unclaimed dividends BERERRR - - - - - - il 4
Tssue of new shares Bk 13473 - - - - - - 13473
Isste of convertible notes B - - - 6,450 - - - 6,450
Share option scheme: BREH .

Transfer upon lapse of share options IBERE SR - - - - (21,134) - 20,134 -
At31 December 2020 REFZFE+ZA=H-H

and 1 January 2021 R-Z=—-F—H-H 133,754 2882 152,891 6,450 2293 (15,562) 39,015 0113
Currency translation differences EizH - - - - - 2130 - 2130
Loss for the year FREH - - - - - - (302000 (30,200
Share option scheme: FREH -

Value of grantee services AEARBEE - - - - 10 - - 20

Transfer upon lapse of share options TRBERE S - - - - (367) - 367 -
At31 December 2021 REFZ-E+ZA=H-R 133754 28 1581 6,450 26 (1343 9180 293863

Notes: [ 5E

(a)  The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference (a) AN ZBANBBAEARN ARE— UL
between the aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by A ) A e W R R S D 2 R AR AR
the Company under the corporate reorganisation in 1995 and the 7 ) RS T B AT 2 R4 T (B W o 2 2538 »
nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

(b) The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its (b) AL EN AT IR T A BB 2 A LA
shareholders of the Company comprise share premium, contributed Byl A8~ B BLER ~ DB 0y 7 B 6l 2 A 3 B
surplus, share-based payment reserve and retained profits. Under B AR BB R] o PR 2 BEE AT AN
the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the Company’s reserve ) it R R 1) R R R BT RS
is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders JE 7 AL TR A B 2 e SC T B RR T R AR
subject to the provisions of its Articles of Association and provided A R SR AT BB AR > AN A R BRI H R
that immediately following the distribution or the payment of SEIR TR b AR B WA TE o B0 3k 1 R AT LA
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in O AL O X0 IR o MRIEA L Al 2 A R
the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be AR > B B LA A 22 BRSO A R (L
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares. In accordance 5y s A8 )

with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the share
premium, of the Company.
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37 K& AW
FTREFIR EF D —FT AT —HZEE

37 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

BEOKOWE B OBE O AR A A :?:*@iﬁ’z

December 2021: IR/
Place of Particulars of
Name incorporation" issued/paid-up capital Interests held”  Principal activities
1 sk B B CBAT /B A FifemEa®  FEEH
Daphne Footwear (Sichuan) Co., Ltd® China RMB§7,300,000 100%  Property holding
FESK M (DO 1]) $ESEA R Al R 87.300,0007C A R EERCRTES
Daphne Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.? China US$30,000,000 100%  Distribution and licensing of
BRI GEE) ARA R Gt 30,000,000% & footwear and accessories
and investment holding
I SRR KR
FRHERR TR A R B B I
Full Pearl International Limited British Virgin Islands 3,294 shares of US$1 each 59.96%  Investment holding
BYBBA R 09 | aeid 329408 5 M (A 1 % e 2 e HEHER
Gentlefit Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100; 100%  Investment and trademark holding
HHEESAERAH il 13,055,667 non-voting BB LA T
deferred shares
of HK$13,035,667
1007 7T73 £ 1008 &4 fi 5
13,055,667# L1 413,055,667
eisiet #i3dil
Hanjiang Footwear Co., Ltd., China USD6,000,000 85%  Property holding
Putian City® il 6,000,0003 7¢ e Rk
Y F T WA LA R /]
Prime Success (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 5,000,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
e R L US$0.01 each RE R
5,000,000 &5 i
0.01%7E 2 Ity
Shoebox Commerce Co., Ltd.® China RMB460,000,000 96.46%  Distribution and licensing of
BB E AR A A i 460,000,0007C A R footwear and accessories
IR i SR B R o S
Shoebox Holdings Limited Hong Kong 14,111 ordinary shares of 96.46%  Investment and trademark holding
SRR A R 7 Eif HK$381,470,740 R RFFH T
381,470,740 7t
A R4
Victoria Success (Shanghai) Limited® China US§$23,000,000 100%  Property holding
KBEE (L) ARARO Gl 23,000,000% ¢ EERERIES
Xieyong (Jinan) Footwear Co., Ltd.®! China RMB17,500,000 100%  Property holding
o B HE MR A R A A G| 17,500,0007¢ A & H fAMmE
Xieyong (Nanjing) Warehouse Co., Ltd.®”  China RMB21,000,000 100%  Property holding
MR E A RARAR L 21,000,0007¢ A R SRS
Xieyong (Shenyang) Warehouse Co., Ltd.®”  China USD3,000,000 100%  Property holding
WA AR A RA RO B 3,000,000 ¢ SREEIES
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(i)
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These companies were established in Mainland China in the form of
foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than investments in Full Pearl International Limited and Prime
Success (BVI) Limited which are held directly by the Company, all
subsidiaries shown above are held indirectly by the Company.

Other than Full Pearl International Limited and Prime Success (BVI)
Limited which operate in Hong Kong, all subsidiaries shown above
operate in the same place in which they were incorporated, respectively.

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends,
nor rights to receive notice, nor rights to attend and vote at any general
meeting of the company, nor rights to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

The English names of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China
represent the best effort by the directors in translating their Chinese names
as they do not have official English names.

Non-controlling interests

Set out below is summarised financial information, before
inter-company eliminations, for subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests that are material to the Group:

37 KA (5)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(i)

%A T A A R RO B S 2 A A

R A & 2 18 B FR S 7] B PrimeSuccess (BVI)Limited
2B HAN T RSN - BB A B E A R
A F A -

b 2 B A RN 7] K PrimeSuccess (BVI)Limited /i
FUS AN > LA B BRI A B RS 23 7 43 Al H s
I 5 37 Sl 9 o

0 5 S5 AR A % £ £ R L SR M % O W) 2 R B
RSO AT e SRR B A 2 e 5 PR AR A L 3t
SR o T MR O J HE 2 BRLAT ] 23 UK o

ISR C PN 35 v i) NS &R & o P
B A SO MR AT > R Ry % S R 4 WS AT IE
EMUEAS R

I 2 i 1 R 2

N SCHCHN AT I R i L B R A T
o A ] B AT R E R B JE 2
Z B R

2021 2020
=t e A =t
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# 5t T HE T

Current assets i 414,350 285,555
Current liabilities i BEY (189,421) (40,998)
Net assets T 224,929 244,557
Revenue I % 22,138 1,777
Profit for the year AN 5,498 235
Total comprehensive income 2 T Ui 25 AR AR 4,674 12,234
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating #8415 By E A (Fr )

activities Z Bl i 19,510 (2,801)
Net cash generated from investing activities 1% & G B 2 4= 19 Bl & {F 48 1,009 57
Net cash used in financing activities AT B T R R B v AR (64) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash e RBE&%5EY

equivalents FHWER (D) 20,455 (2,744)
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